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From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: "Joel Greear"; "Chad Bala"; "Jeff Slothower"
Cc: Chris Cruse; Dan Carlson
Subject: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Deemed Complete
Date: Tuesday, February 7, 2023 11:53:47 AM
Attachments: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing Deemed Complete 2-7-2023.pdf

Good morning,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your long plat application (LP-23-00001 Thorp
Landing). I have also placed hard copies in the mail.
 
The sign mentioned in the letter will be ready to pick up at the CDS office on Thursday February 9,
2023 for posting on site with instructions. If it is ready before that I will let you know with a follow-
up e-mail to this one.
 
Let me know if there are any questions.
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
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 KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2 Ellensburg WA 98926 

 cds@co.kittitas.wa.us 

 Office 509-962-7506 

 Building Partnerships - Building Communities  

 

 Community Planning       Building Inspection       Plan Review       Administration       Permit Services       Code Enforcement  
 

 NOTICE OF APPLICATION 

 

 Notice of Application:  Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

 Application Received:  Tuesday, January 10, 2023 

 Application Complete:  Tuesday, February 7, 2023 

 

 Project File Number:  LP-23-00001 

 Project Name:  Thorp Landing Plat 

 Applicant:  Thorp Landing LLC (Joel Greear) 

 

 Location: Two tax parcels (443233 and 493233), located approximately .5 miles northwest of the intersection of N Thorp Hwy 

and I-90 off of Thorp Landing Lane in Section 11, Township 18, Range 17, W.M.; Kittitas County. The properties bear Kittitas 

County Map numbers 18-17-11040-0033 and 18-17-11040-0007. 

 

 Proposal: Thorp Landing LLC, submitted an application for a 10-lot plat (subdivision) on 2 parcels totaling 54.39 acres of land.  

The proposal includes 10 residential lots ranging in size from 5 acres to 8.64 acres. The subject properties are currently zoned 

Agriculture 5 with a Rural Residential land use designation. This property was rezoned from Agriculture 20 to Agricultural 5 and 

the land use designation was changed from Rural Working to Rural Residential as part of the County’s 2022 Annual Docket 

Amendments under Ordinance No. 2022-017. 

 

 Materials Available for Review: The submitted application and related filed documents may be examined on the CDS website 

at  http://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx, and by navigating to “Long Plats” , then the Project File Number 

under “LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing” or in person at 411 N Ruby St. Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA 98926 during regular business 

hours. Phone: (509) 962-7506 

 

 Written Comments on this proposal can be submitted to CDS any time prior to 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 9, 2023. Any 

person has the right to comment on the application and request a copy of the decision once made. 

 

 Environmental Review: The County expects to issue a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for this proposal and will use 

the optional DNS process under WAC 197-11-355, meaning this may be the only opportunity for the public to comment on the 

environmental impacts of the proposal. A copy of the threshold determination may be obtained from the County once made. 

 

 Public Hearing: An open record hearing will be scheduled before the Kittitas County Hearing Examiner. A Public Hearing 

Notice will be issued establishing the date, time, and location of this hearing. 

 

 Required Permits: Preliminary and Final Plat approval, SEPA. 

 

 Designated Permit Coordinator (staff contact): Jeremiah Cromie, Staff Planner: (509) 962-7046; email at  

 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us. 
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From: Adam Osbekoff
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 10:51:07 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Hello Jeremiah
 
The Snoqualmie Tribe [Tribe] is a federally recognized sovereign Indian Tribe.  We were signatory to
the Treaty of Point Elliott of 1855; we reserved certain rights and privileges and ceded certain lands
to the United States. As a signatory to the Treaty of Point Elliot, the Tribe specifically reserved
among other things, the right to fish at usual and accustomed areas and the “privilege of hunting
and gathering roots and berries on open and unclaimed lands” off-reservation throughout the
modern-day state of Washington.
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment. Based on the information provided and our
understanding of the project and its APE we have no substantive comments to offer at this time.
However, please be aware that if the scope of the project or the parameters for defining the APE
change we reserve the right to modify our current position.
 
Thank you
 
Adam Osbekoff
Cultural Resource Compliance Manager
adam@snoqualmietribe.us
C: 425.753.0388
9416 384th Ave SE
PO BOX 969
Snoqualmie Washington 98065
 
 

From: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 10:39 AM
To: Joe Dietzel <joe.dietzel@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Kim Dawson <kim.dawson@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
George Long <long@kittcom.org>; 'storch@kittcom.org' <storch@kittcom.org>; Julie Kjorsvik
<julie.kjorsvik@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Toni Berkshire <toni.berkshire@co.kittitas.wa.us>; PublicHealth
Inspectors <PublicHealthInspectors@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Lisa Lawrence
<lisa.lawrence@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Patti Stacey <patti.stacey@co.kittitas.wa.us>; David Ohl
<david.ohl@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Codi Fortier <codi.fortier@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
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From: WSDOT Aviation Land Use Inquiries and Application Submittals
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 4:35:00 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

M Cromie,
 
WSDOT reviewed this application on 2/21/23 and found that there are no land use compatibility or
airspace issues in relation to local airports. No comments.
 
Cheers
 
David Ison, PhD | Aviation Planner
Airport Land Use Compatibility & Emerging Aviation Technologies
Washington State Department of Transportation
isond@wsdot.wa.gov C: 360-890-5258
 
 

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
'enviroreview@yakama.com' <enviroreview@yakama.com>; 'corrine_camuso@yakama.com'
<corrine_camuso@yakama.com>; 'jessica_lally@yakama.com' <jessica_lally@yakama.com>;
'noah_oliver@yakama.com' <noah_oliver@yakama.com>; 'casey_barney@yakama.com'
<casey_barney@yakama.com>; 'kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; Matthews,
Jim <matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; 'barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov>;
Petropoulos, Terra (ECY) <tebu461@ECY.WA.GOV>; White, Lori (ECY) <lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>;
'FormerOrchards@ecy.wa.gov' <FormerOrchards@ecy.wa.gov>; 'wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov'
<wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov>; 'crosepa@ecy.wa.gov' <crosepa@ecy.wa.gov>; Carp, Lizzie (ECY)
<lcar461@ecy.wa.gov>; Downes, Scott G (DFW) <Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; Nelson, Jennifer L
(DFW) <Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov>; Torrey, Elizabeth M (DFW) <Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>;
'sepa@dahp.wa.gov' <sepa@dahp.wa.gov>; 'jorgenja@cwu.edu' <jorgenja@cwu.edu>;
'nelmsk@cwu.edu' <nelmsk@cwu.edu>; Jeremy Larson <jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph
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From: Mau, Russell E (DOH)
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Cc: Holly Erdman; Smits, Brenda M (DOH)
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
Date: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 9:51:59 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Mr. Cromie:
 
The Department of Health (DOH) Office of Drinking Water (ODW) has the following comment:
 

·        DOH ODW concurs with the applicants statements in the SEPA checklist under “Utilities”
that drinking water for the 10 lot development will be provided by a Group B water system
that will be submitted to Kittitas County Health for review and approval.

 
If anyone has any questions or concerns, please contact DOH, thanks,
 
 
Russell E. Mau, PhD, PE
Regional Engineer
Office of Drinking Water
Washington State Department of Health
16201 East Indiana Avenue, Suite 1500, Spokane Valley, WA  99216
Russell.Mau@doh.wa.gov
509-329-2116 | www.doh.wa.gov
 

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
<casey_barney@yakama.com>; 'kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>;
'matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; 'barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov'
<barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; Petropoulos, Terra (ECY) <tebu461@ECY.WA.GOV>; White, Lori (ECY)
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From: Connor Armi
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Cc: Guy Moura
Subject: Re: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
Date: Thursday, February 23, 2023 4:37:48 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Hello Jeremiah Cromie,

This consult is in reference to Long Plat Application – LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing. We request any
undertakings, particularly those involving ground disturbing activities, to have an IDP in place prior to
implementation. This undertaking involves division of plats for the purpose of rural residential
development. The Tribal Historic Preservation Officer expects to also see the development plans for
these individual parcels throughout their various implementations.

If ground disturbing activities are to be conducted, such as the installation of a septic system or the
scraping of a driveway, creation of a concrete pad, a cultural resource surface survey and sub-
surface testing of the area in and directly around the proposed ground disturbance are
recommended as a surface observation will not be an accurate assessment of the existent potential
for sub-surface cultural deposits. Please do so prior to ground disturbing activities. These tests
should be to the terminal depth of the implementation to ensure the totality of the presence or
absence of cultural material. There are known cultural resources of historic significance nearby and
these particular parcels are considered Moderately to Very High Risk for an inadvertent discovery
according to the DAHP predictive model. CCT H/A recommends that during implementation there be
an inadvertent discovery plan or (IDP) in place to ensure compliance with all Section 106 and
relevant cultural resource laws both federally and to the state of Washington.

Thank you for consulting with the Colville Confederated Tribes History and Archaeology Program.

Sincerely,

Connor Armi | Archaeologist Senior MA, RPA
History/Archaeology Program
Confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation
PO Box 150 | Nespelem, WA 99155
d: 509-634-2690 | c: 509-631-1131
connor.armi.hsy@colvilletribes.com

On Tue, Feb 21, 2023 at 10:39 AM Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
wrote:

Good morning,

 

CDS is requesting comments on the following Long Plat Application: LP-23-00001 Thorp
Landing. Links to the file materials can be found below. I have attached the Notice of
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        KITTITAS COUNTY FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE  
 411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA  98926 

           Fire Marshal (509) 962-7000 Deputy Fire Marshal (509) 962-7657 

 

 
 

1 
 

February 8, 2023 

 

To: Whom It May Concern 

Re:  

 

Fire Apparatus Access Road – Comply with the current edition of the International Fire Code (IFC) Section 503 and 

Appendix D, Kittitas County Code (KCC) Road Standards Title 12, and the International Wildland Urban Interface Code 

(IWUIC) Chapter 4. Any areas designating a fire lane shall be marked as such in accordance with the International Fire 

Code, typically red painted striping, and permanent signage.  

 

    Required 

Comments: Any roads or driveways constructed shall comply with the above and any other referenced standards through 

out the progress of this project.  
 

Key Box Required – Comply with the current edition of the IFC Section 506 and KCC Title 20. Contact Knox 

Company (knoxbox.com) and choose a product that will facilitate rapid access to a gated or otherwise restricted areas for 

the purpose of firefighting and life safety operations. These Knox devices shall be installed near the primary entrance to 

the property/building and any gates require a permit through the Kittitas County Fire Marshal’s Office (KCFMO). This 

shall be enforced, additionally, to any and all gates installed. Gates shall be installed according to IFC Section 503.5 – 

503.6 and KCC Title 20.03. 

 

   Required 
Comments: This does not apply if no gates are installed for this project. 

 

Fire Flow – Fire flow is the amount of water required for fire suppression by the fire department/district. This is not 

related to hydraulic demands related to automatic fire sprinkler systems. Fire flow is determined by the square footage 

and type of building construction. Fire flow documentation must be provided to the KCFMO previous to final inspection. 

Fire flow must comply with IFC Appendix B. In cases where buildings/structures do not exist yet, the reference of NFPA 

1142, 22, 20, and 24 may be required. This requirement provides for a reduction of the fire flow if the structures are 

protected with an approved fire sprinkler systems installed in accordance with the IFC Chapter 9.  

 

    Required 

Comments: The IFC states the minimum fire flow shall be 1000 gallons per minute for the duration of 1 hour. Please 

install a water supply system that is capable of this flow rate and separate from any residential water supplies. Please 

submit the design plans to Community Development Services (CDS) so they can be reviewed/approved by Safebuilt. The 

code allows for alternate water supplies, such as tanks, and a stand-alone hydrant to suffice so long as the fire flow and 

rate of delivery are the same.  
 

Fire Hydrant System – When required, the fire hydrant system shall comply with IFC Appendix C and Section 507. 

Contact the KCFMO to determine hydrant spacing, flow requirements, and discharge port specifications. Depending on 

the proposed project, the hydrant system may need to comply with sections in NFPA 22, 24, and/or 25. Hydrants systems 

require a KCFMO permit. If a fire pump is needed to ensure the proper operation of a hydrant system a KCFMO permit 

is required.  
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        KITTITAS COUNTY FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE  
 411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA  98926 

           Fire Marshal (509) 962-7000 Deputy Fire Marshal (509) 962-7657 

 

 
 

2 
 

    Required 
Comments: Please submit system design plans to CDS so they can be reviewed/approved by Safebuilt. Once the water 

supply is established the KCFMO and the installer shall perform acceptance testing for final inspection. Other inspections 

may apply and will be notified to the builder/developer based on the plans submitted and approved.  
 

Fire Alarm System – When required, the fire alarm system shall comply with IFC Section 907 and NFPA 72. This will 

be determined at the review stage and will require monitoring by a base station alarm service and annually serviced by a 

third party. These systems also require a KCFMO permit. 

 

    Required 

Comments: 
 

Automatic Fire Sprinkler System – When required, the automatic fire sprinkler system shall comply with IFC 

Section 903 and applicable NFPA standards depending on building construction and occupancy types. This will be 

determined at plan review and shall require a KCFMO Fire Sprinkler Permit. Fire sprinkler systems in commercial 

occupancies will require annual servicing and inspection from a third-party. Proof of these annual inspections will be 

required at the commercial occupancy’s annual KCFMO Fire and Life Safety Inspection. 

 

    Required 

Comments: 
 

Emergency Responder Radio Coverage System (ERRCS) – All commercial level structures/projects are required 

to have a radio frequency evaluation performed to indicate if an ERRCS shall be required. If that evaluation indicates, the 

ERRCS shall be installed in accordance with WAC 51-54A-0510, IFC 510, NFPA 72 Chapter 24, and NFPA 1221. These 

codes and standards provide minimum signal strength requirements inside and outside the structure. If the signal strength 

does not meet the minimum requirements a consultant may be required to assess if the structure will require an ERRCS. If 

required, the KCFMO and Kittcom 911 will work collaboratively to ensure the ERRCS is compliant with the above codes 

and standards. 

 

   Required 

Comments: 
 

Fire Extinguishers – Fire extinguishers are required for every 75’ of travel and must be mounted so that the top of the 

extinguisher is no more than 4’ above the floor. Fire extinguishers must be serviced annually by a third party inspector 

and be a minimum of 4lbs and be of type 10:A 20:BC. 

 

   Required 
Comments: 
 

Wildfire Prevention – All residential, commercial-residential, and commercial structures will receive a WUIC 

evaluation upon submission of the Preliminary Site Analysis, unless Pre-Application Approval is granted. Shortly after 

pre-application approval the KCFMO will perform a WUIC evaluation and attach it to the official comments. The WUIC 

requirements will comply with the IWUIC.  
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        KITTITAS COUNTY FIRE MARSHAL’S OFFICE  
 411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA  98926 

           Fire Marshal (509) 962-7000 Deputy Fire Marshal (509) 962-7657 

 

 
 

3 
 

    Required 
Comments: 

 

Fire and Life Safety Inspection – All non-residential projects will receive an initial Fire and Life Safety Inspection in 

order to acquire certificate of occupancy. Those same projects will receive annual Fire and Life Safety Inspections each 

year after the initial inspection until the project has been rendered unused. These inspections will be in compliance with 

the IFC and other applicable NFPA standards. 

 

    Required 

Comments: 

 

 

Thank you for your time. 

 

 

 Deputy Fire Marshal, 

   Joseph A Dietzel 
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From: Mau, Russell E (DOH)
To: Jeremiah Cromie; Holly Erdman
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH); Lucy Garcia; Joseph Rainwater; Jesse Cox
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
Date: Wednesday, March 1, 2023 8:56:22 AM
Attachments: image001.png

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
 
While the applicant’s proposal appears to generate two Group B water systems, the extraction of
water for both wells would be considered a “project” and the combined groundwater extraction
would need to be evaluated as a total. As an example and clarification regarding the implication of
“project”, if the applicant does not have any water rights, then the total quantity of groundwater
that can be extracted (or pumped) from the ground, on any single day, is a single exempt well limit
of 5,000 gallons. The applicant would not gain two exempt well limits simply because the “project” is
split into two pieces.
 
I provide this caution – the applicant should contact the Department of Ecology for confirmation and
guidance.
 
As for Group B water systems, if the applicant is able to proceed with an expanding Group B and a
second Group B, then Kittitas County Health would administer the approval of the two.
 
If anyone has any questions, please contact DOH, thanks,
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, March 1, 2023 8:36 AM
To: Mau, Russell E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV>; Holly Erdman
<Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH) <brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov>; Lucy Garcia
<lucy.garcia@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Joseph Rainwater <joseph.rainwater@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jesse Cox
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b. Ground Water:

1) Will groundwater be withdrawn from a well for drinking water or other purposes? If so, give a
general description of the well, proposed uses and approximate quantities withdrawn from the well.
Will water be discharged to groundwater? Give general description, purpose, and approximate
quantities if known. [help]
Currently there is an approved and operating Group B water system serving lots (See Exhibit # 10). This
existing system will serve two (2) lots of the proposed plat. The existing well is located on proposed lot 10 of
this proposal. The remaining lots will be served by a new Group B water system. The well for this new
system will be located on Lot 7 of this proposed plat and will serve the remaing 8 lots. This system will be
designed and reviewed and approved by Kittitas County.

2) Describe waste material that will be discharged into the ground from septic tanks or

other sources, if any (for example: Domestic sewage; industrial, containing the

following chemicals. . . ; agricultural; etc.). Describe the general size of the system, the

number of such systems, the number of houses to be served (if applicable), or the number of

animals or humans the system(s) are expected to serve. [help
Each lot would contain its own individual septic system for a total of 10 septic systems for this proposal.
Each individual septic system would be designed to the appropriate number of bedrooms within each
residence. These individual septic systems could vary from pressurized systems to gravity systems, all of
which would be approved through the Kittitas County Department of Environmental Health.





<jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
 

External Email

Russell and Holly,
 
The applicant explains this (see screenshot below)  in their attached SEPA that was submitted with
their application materials under Item 3. Water(b)(1). They are wanting to use the existing Group B
well (original approval attached) to serve 2 lots in the new plat. My understanding with this after
talking to Health would require approval of expansion for the group B well since it was only
approved for 6 connections. The other 8 lots of the 10 lot proposed plat would be served by a new
Group B well system and both systems would all be under County Health jurisdiction. Please let me
know if you have further questions and any updated comments need to be submitted by 5 PM on
March 9, 2023. Thanks!
 

 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
 

From: Mau, Russell E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV> 
Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 9:01 AM
To: Holly Erdman <Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jeremiah Cromie
<jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
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Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH) <brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click links,
open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender and
have verified the content is safe.

 

Holly and Jeremiah:
 
I should probably have re-reviewed the submittal, but is this for a stand-alone development
consisting of a 10 connection water system or is it being added to the existing “Thorp Landing” water
system to generate a 16 connection water system?
 
If you have that information, please let me know, thanks,
 
 
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
 

From: Holly Erdman <Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 1:25 PM
To: Mau, Russell E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV>; Jeremiah Cromie
<jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH) <brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application
 

External Email

Thorp Landing was approved for 6 connections. Per our JPR with DOH we don’t approve above 9
connections at the county level so they would need to work with you for a system of 10.
 

From: Mau, Russell E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 9:52 AM
To: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Holly Erdman <Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Smits, Brenda M (DOH)
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STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY 
Central Region Office 

1250 West Alder St., Union Gap, WA 98903-0009 • 509-575-2490 
 
 
 
 
 
March 7, 2023 
 
 
 
Jeremiah Cromie 
Kittitas County 
411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
RE: 202300783, LP-23-00001 
 
Dear Jeremiah Cromie: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Notice of Application for the Thorp Landing Plat. We have 
reviewed the application and have the following comment. 
 
WATER RESOURCES 
 
In Washington State, prospective water users must obtain authorization from the Department of Ecology before 
diverting surface water or withdrawing ground water, with one exception. Ground water withdrawals of up to 5,000 
gallons per day used for single or group domestic supply, up to 5,000 gallons per day used for industrial purposes, 
stock watering, and for the irrigation of up to one-half acre of non-commercial lawn and garden are exempt from the 
permitting process. Water use under the RCW 90.44.050 exemption establishes a water right that is subject to the 
same privileges, restrictions, laws and regulations as a water right permit or certificate obtained directly from 
Ecology.  
 
If you have any questions or would like to respond to these Water Resources comments, please contact Christopher 
Kossik at (509) 379-1826 or email at christopher.kossik@ecy.wa.gov.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Lucila Cornejo 
SEPA Coordinator 
Central Regional Office 
(509) 208-4590 
crosepacoordinator@ecy.wa.gov 
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STATE OF WASHINGTON 
 

 WASHINGTON STATE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
PARKS DEVELOPMENT SERVICE CENTER 

 

270 9th Street N. E., Suite 200, East Wenatchee, Washington 98802 * (509) 665-4343 * Fax (509) 886-6232 
Internet Address: http://www.parks.wa.gov 

TDD (Telecommunications Device for the Deaf): (360) 664-3133 
 
 

March 8, 2023 
 
Jeremiah Cromie 
Planner II 
Kittitas County, Community Development Services 
411 N. Ruby St; Suite 2 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Application 
 
Dear Mr. Cromie, 
 
The Washington State Parks and Recreation Commission (State Parks) appreciates the opportunity to 
offer comments on the Long Plat Application: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing to develop a 10-lot plat 
(subdivision) on 2 parcels in Kittitas County, Washington. We offer these comments as an adjacent 
property owner of the public recreational facility known as the Palouse to Cascades State Park Trail. 
Please enter these comments into the public record. 
 
We have reviewed the subject proposal and request that the following conditions be made part of the 
permit for this proposal, if approved, in order to mitigate potential adverse effects of the development.  

 
1. Potential Adverse Impact: Trespass 

 
Mitigation Measure: The project proponent should be responsible for professionally surveying, 
marking, and recording of the common property line. State Parks is requesting a copy of the 
survey be provided for records. 
 

2. Potential Adverse Impact: Trespass, dumping, uncontrolled access, and indiscriminate use 
 
Mitigation Measure: If the project proponent needs to access State Park land, either temporarily 
or permanently, the project proponent will need to apply for and obtain legal easement for access. 
Contact State Parks’ Lands Agent, Ken Graham (360) 902-8680. 
 

3. Potential Adverse Impact: Impacts to recreation during construction 
 
Mitigation Measure: State Parks is concerned with public safety during construction. Provide 
construction plans and any public safety measures that will be used during construction. 

 
4. Potential Adverse Impact: Noise, light, glare, natural resources 

 
Mitigation Measure: Provide development setbacks or other protection measures to protect the 
existing mature vegetation and associated root systems that exist along the common property line.  
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Submit plans immediately for review and approval and incorporate Parks comments into the 
project as necessary.    
 

5. Potential Adverse Impact: Stormwater discharge 
 
Mitigation Measure: Grade, shape or otherwise contour the project to prevent stormwater from 
discharging onto State Parks property. 
 

 
If you have any questions concerning the above comments, please contact me at (509) 847-8889 or 
Eric.Jazdzyk@parks.wa.gov   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Eric Jazdzyk  
Eastern Region Park Planner 
 
Cc:   Ken Graham, Lands Program Property and Acquisition Specialist 
 Scott Griffith, Southeast Region Operations Manager 

John Ernster, Central Cascades Area Manager 
Brian Patnode, Construction Project Coordinator  
Chelsea Harris, Environmental Planner 
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Subdivision Comments 

 

To: Kelly Bacon, CDS Planner 1 

From: Holly Erdman, Environmental Health Specialist 2 

Date: 1/12/2022 

RE: SPF-XX-000XX Connor Short Plat 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above-mentioned project regarding water and septic 

requirements to comply with Kittitas County Public Health Department’s Water Resources and 

Environmental Health requirements. 

Findings 

On Site Sewage 

Finding 1 

Any on-site septic systems that are to be utilized for wastewater management must adhere to the 

standards set by both the Washington Administrative Code, and Kittitas County Code.  In accordance 

with KCC 13.04.090, a minimum of one soil log for each proposed lot where individual sewage disposal 

systems are contemplated must be completed.  If community drain fields are to be utilized, soil logs 

must be done in the proposed locations of each(See Conditions A-2). 

Water 

Finding 1 

The existing Group B water system must be approved and expanded to serve 2 of the proposed lots 

of this plat prior to final plat signature.   

 

The proposed Group B water system must have a well drilled and a Group B water system approved 

to be able to serve 8 connections with a public water system ID# issued prior to obtaining final plat 

signature.   
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B Final Plat Review & Recording (Prior to Final Plat Approval) 

 

Soil logs were done on each proposed lot.  

 

Group B water system expansion must be applied for the existing 6 connection Group B and 

expanded to serve 2 more lots. 

 

For remaining 8 lots, a Group B water system must be approved with a state identification 

number issued prior to obtaining final plat signature.   
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From: Erinn Boitano
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Cc: Johnny Boitano
Subject: comments for THORP LANDING PLAT
Date: Thursday, March 9, 2023 3:01:14 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
As residents and adjacent neighbors to the proposed Thorp Landing Plat we have many
concerns. 
 
The current lots proposed were recently rezoned in our opinion incorrectly due to the fact
that they are inside flood areas. With that being said they were indeed rezoned but careful
consideration should be taken because many of the proposed lots are in a flood plane.  
 
Most nearby residents do not have deep wells and adding 10 more homes plus the other
newly approved 7 will most definitely have a negative effect on our aquafer which will then
lead to residents needing to dig deeper wells.  
 
Adding 10 more septic systems (17 if you include the other newly approved lots) and greatly
increased infrastructure could potentially lead to well contamination. In the summer everyone
flood irrigates which brings the water table to a very high level in this area which will easily
carry contaminates to not only our aquafer but nearby streams. 
 
By adding 10 more building lots that each include homes, shops, roads and such,  they will
negatively affect the surface water and drainage patterns, potentially causing severe damage
to these newly constructed homes but also the existing residences and farms.  
 
It is our hope that you deny their request for development. It is not good for the betterment
of the existing residents.  
 
Johnny & Erinn  Boitano 
681 Goodwin Rd. 
THORP, WA 98946 
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From: paula thompson
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: LP-23-00001
Date: Thursday, March 9, 2023 4:58:22 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

During the 2022 Comprehensive Plan update last fall the SEPA checklist was inadequate and
the County's excuse, as usual, was this is a non-project action and nothing can be speculated
about environmental issues and concerns. Now we at the project state of a plat application and
a totally inadequate SEPA checklist once again submitted with no identification of wetlands
and perennial springs and associated water rights which have deeded easements and
prescriptive easements through this property to deliver this water to the water right holders.
There have been several lawsuits pertaining to these water rights over the last 100 years
concerning disruption of their delivery and have been put in the record for this SEPA. The
delivery rights of the water right holders has been upheld in court and will be vigorously
defended. 

The creation of these lots without fire hydrants will lower the fire rating of the Thorp Fire
District and increase insurance cost for every other landowner. 

A turn lane on Thorp Hwy should be required due to the 17 lots served by Thorp Landing
Lane. 

They do not address irrigation runoff from the proposed lots in the Water runoff item. They
cannot allow irrigation runoff onto adjacent land with in the plat to surround lands.
There is no irrigation plan addressing these issues and responsibilities.

Placing homes, driveways, out buildings etc definitely may have affects on existing drainage
patterns and creat new patterns with unintended consequences with in and outside the plat.
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411 North Ruby Street, Suite 1 TEL (509) 962-7523 

Ellensburg, WA  98926 FAX (509) 962-7663  

 
  
M E M O R A N D U M  

  

 

TO:    All Staff  

FROM:   Public Works Plan Review Team  

DATE:   March 10, 2023 

SUBJECT:  LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing 

  

ACCESS 1. An approved access permit shall be required from the Department of Public 

Works prior to creating any new driveway access or performing work within 

the county road right-of-way. 

2. Private roads serving any of the lots within this development shall be 

inspected and certified by a licensed professional engineer for conformance 

with current Kittitas County Road Standards, 2015 edition.  Kittitas County 

Public Works shall require this road certification to be completed prior to 

final approval of the project. If a performance guarantee is used in lieu of 

the required improvements, the private road shall be constructed and 

certified to comply with the minimum requirements of the International Fire 

Code prior to issuance of a building permit. 

3. All road construction within the public or private right-of-way shall be 

designed by or under the direct supervision of a civil engineer, licensed to 

practice in the State of Washington. Please submit road plan and profile 

drawings along with any associated drainage reports for a formal Civil 

Review to Kittitas County Public Works. (KCC 12.04.020) 

4. Roads longer than 150’ in length are required to provide a Fire Apparatus 

Road Turnaround meeting the requirements of Appendix D in the 

International Fire Code. 

5. Maintenance of driveway approaches shall be the responsibility of the 

owner whose property they serve. The County will not maintain access. 

6. Future access onto proposed lots may not be accessed off a county road if 

there is an alternative road to access from (i.e, proposed lots 5 and 6 must 

access from Thorp Landing Ln and not Goodwin Rd). 

7. Kittitas County will not accept private roads for maintenance as public 
streets or roads until such streets or roads are brought into conformance 
with current County Road Standards and formally adopted by the Kittitas 
County Board of County Commissioners. 

8. In addition to the above-mentioned conditions, all applicable Kittitas County 

Road Standards apply to this proposal. Access is not guaranteed to any 

existing or created parcel on this application. 

        

   

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS   
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411 North Ruby Street, Suite 1 TEL (509) 962-7523 

Ellensburg, WA  98926 FAX (509) 962-7663  

ENGINEERING 1. Transportation Concurrency - A transportation impact analysis (TIA) shall be 

required for all development that will generate more than nine (9) peak 

hour vehicle trips. Please provide estimated traffic generation for peak 

hours to determine if a TIA will be required. (KCC 12.10.040(c)). A courtesy 

review identifies a peak hour of 9.9 vehicles per hour, requiring a Traffic 

Impact Analysis. 

2. Plat Approvals - All plats must show the acceptance signature of the County 

Engineer. The acceptance block shall be as follows (per KCC 16.24.170) 

 

  EXAMINED AND APPROVED   

This _____ day of  _____, A.D., 20___.  

______________________________  

Kittitas County Engineer 

 

3. Newly created lots shall access onto an internal road system and not directly 

onto a County Road. Please include a note that lot access is to be only to the 

internal private road, and no direct access from an individual lot onto the 

County Road. 

4. Please include the following notes: 

a. Kittitas County will not accept private roads for maintenance as 
public streets or roads until such streets or roads are brought into 
conformance with current County Road Standards and formally 
adopted by the Kittitas County Board of County Commissioners. 

b. Maintenance of the access is the responsibility of the property 
owners who benefit from its use. 

c. An approved access permit will be required from the Department of 
Public Works prior to creating any new driveway access or 
performing work within the county road right-of-way. 

d. Any further subdivisions or lots to be served by proposed access 
may result in further access requirements. See Kittitas County Road 
Standards. 

e. A public utility easement 10 feet in width is reserved along all lot 
lines. The 10-foot easement shall abut the exterior plat boundary 
and shall be divided 5 feet of each side of interior lot lines. Said 
easement shall also be used for irrigation. 

5. A grading permit (GP-22-00008) was previously obtained. Please note the 
expiration date on the grading permit. 
 

SURVEY No survey review performed on this application.  
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411 North Ruby Street, Suite 1 TEL (509) 962-7523 

Ellensburg, WA  98926 FAX (509) 962-7663  

FLOOD A portion of the proposed plat is located in the FEMA identified special flood hazard 

area (100-year floodplain). If possible, any future development should remain 

outside of the floodplain in order to reduce risk and avoid mandatory flood 

insurance purchase requirements. All activities within the floodplain must be 

permitted through the floodplain development permit process and follow the 

regulations within KCC 14.08. 

In accordance with KCC Chapter 14.08.220, all subdivisions as well as new 

development shall: 

1. Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage. 
2. Have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 

systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage. 
3. Have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood damage. 
4. Where base flood elevation data has not been provided or is not available from 

another authoritative source, it shall be generated for subdivision proposals 
and other proposed developments containing greater than 50 lots or 5 acres 
(whichever is lesser) and shall be included as part of the application and shall 
be noted on the final mylar. 

All subdivisions shall show on the face of both the preliminary and final plat, for 

either short or long plats, the boundary of the 100year floodplain and floodway. 

WATER 

MITIGATION/ 

METERING 

For the proposed plat, the applicant must provide legal water availability for all new 

uses on the proposed lots of this project, which can be provided through mitigation 

certificates. This plat is not eligible for the Kittitas County Water Bank, mitigation 

must be provided from a private water bank. Prior to final plat approval and 

recording, the following conditions shall be met: 

 

In accordance with KCC Chapter 13.35.027, the applicant shall provide one of the 

following documents before final plat approval: 

1. A letter from a water purveyor stating that the purveyor has adequate 

water rights and will provide the necessary water for the new use; 

2. An adequate water right for the proposed new use; or 

3. A certificate of water budget neutrality from the Department of Ecology 

or other adequate interest in water rights from a water bank. 

 

All applicants for land divisions shall also submit information on "proximate parcels" 

held in "common ownership" as those terms are defined in WAC 173-539A-030 and 

otherwise demonstrate how the proposed new use will not violate RCW 90.44.050 

as currently existing or hereafter amended. 

 

Failure to obtain mitigation before commencement of an activity requiring 

mitigation shall be a code violation subject to enforcement under Title 18 KCC. 

 

Final Plat Notes 

 

The following notes shall be placed on the face of the plat: 
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C-1 “Metering is required for all new uses of domestic water for residential well 

connections and usage must be recorded in a manner consistent with 

Kittitas County Code Chapter 13.35.027 and Ecology regulations.” 

 

C-2 “The approval of this division of land provides no guarantee that use of 

water under the ground water exemption (RCW 90.44.050) for this plat or 

any portion thereof will not be subject to curtailment by the Department of 

Ecology or a court of law.” 

 

Please contact Kittitas County Public Works (509) 962-7523 with any questions. 
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

 

Survey Review (03/14/2023) 

1. Together with the owner information, the engineer of record information shall be 

included on the face of the preliminary plat.  
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
To: "Joel Greear"
Cc: Chad Bala; Jeff Slothower; Dan Carlson; Chris Cruse
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
Date: Wednesday, March 15, 2023 8:04:03 AM
Attachments: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Combined Comments.pdf

Joel,
 
Please see the attached comments.
 
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
 
 

From: Joel Greear <joel@centralpavingllc.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 14, 2023 7:54 PM
To: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Chad Bala <bala.ce@gmail.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>; Dan Carlson
<dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Chris Cruse <chris@cruseandassoc.com>
Subject: Re: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click links,
open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender and
have verified the content is safe.

 

Hi Jeremiah,
 
Thank you for this information. Other than the public works comments, I do not see any of the other
agency comments attached or included in your previous email?

Thank you,

Joel Greear
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



mailto:Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV

mailto:jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us

mailto:holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us

mailto:brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov

mailto:lucy.garcia@co.kittitas.wa.us

mailto:joseph.rainwater@co.kittitas.wa.us

mailto:jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us

mailto:Russell.Mau@doh.wa.gov

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.doh.wa.gov%2F&data=04%7C01%7CRussell.Mau%40DOH.WA.GOV%7C5c914ed3ec054092e02e08d8efe15919%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C637523098438446160%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=cUNGYM4eSKBr8wJ679KGmQzAVVbcxAz7oK9fyMdAOsY%3D&reserved=0



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


 



mailto:boitanoeri@hotmail.com
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



mailto:donkdoc@gmail.com

mailto:jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us





Page 1 of 4 
 


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







Page 2 of 4 
 


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





		Snoqualmie Tribe Comments 2-21-23

		WSDOT Aviation Comments 2-21-23

		State Department of Health - Office of Drinking Water Comments 2-22-23

		Colville Tribe Comments 2-23-23

		Fire Marshal Comments 2-24-23 

		Westside Irrigating Company Comments 2-28-23

		State Department of Health - Office of Drinking Water Updated Comments 3-1-23

		Ecology Comments 3-7-23

		Washington State Parks & Rec Comments 3-8-23

		Public Health Comments 3-9-23

		Fudacz Comments 3-9-23

		Boitano Comments 3-9-23

		Paula Thompson Comments 3-9-23

		Public Works Comments 3-10-23









O: 509-929-1044
C: 509-899-7371
www.centralpavingllc.com

Equal Opportunity Employer

The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it was originally addressed and may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in
reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in
error, please contact the sender and delete the material from any computer.

 
 
On Mon, Mar 13, 2023 at 9:40 AM Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> wrote:

Good morning,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your preliminary plat application (LP-23-00001
Thorp Landing). I have also placed hard copies in the mail.
 
While the Public Works comments mentioned no survey review was performed, I have sent the
preliminary plat and associated documents to the county surveyor for review. Any comments
from him will be sent to you as soon as I receive them.
 
Let me know if you have any questions.
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This email may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be aware that any use, review,
retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately
and delete the material from all devices. 
message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14
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
Date: Friday, March 24, 2023 8:05:28 AM

Joel,
 
Thank you for the response. The County grants your request for extension to respond to comments
on your proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an additional 10 days. Please have all response
comments submitted by 5 PM April 7, 2023 or request another extension by that time.
 
Thank you.
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, March 23, 2023 7:28 PM
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
 
Per your letter dated 3/13/2023, Thorp Landing Long Plat, LP-23-00001 Transmittal of Comments
(attached), Thorp Landing, LLC is requesting additional time to address the comments. At this time
we request an additional 10 days, extending the deadline for response to 4/7/2023. Please confirm
receipt of this request.
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
To: "Chad Bala"
Cc: Joel Greear; Jeff Slothower; Dan Carlson; Chris Cruse
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
Date: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 2:39:44 PM

Chad,
 
Thank you for the response. The County grants your request for extension to respond to comments
on your proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an additional 10 days from the previously

required April 7th, 2023 deadline (established in March 24, 2023 e-mail). Please have all response
comments submitted by 5 PM April 17, 2023 or request another extension by that time.
 
Thank you.
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
 
 
 

From: Chad Bala <bala.ce@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 1:08 PM
To: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Joel Greear <joel@centralpavingllc.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>; Dan Carlson
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

 

Jeremiah, 
On behalf of Thorp Landing LLC, I am requesting additional time to address the comments pertaining
to LP-23-00001.  At this time we request an additional 10 days from the April 7th, 2023 deadline (per
your email dated 3-24-2023), extending the deadline to 4-17-2023.  
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Please confirm receipt of this request.
 
Thank you
 
Chad

On Mar 24, 2023, at 8:05 AM, Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
wrote:
 
Joel,
 
Thank you for the response. The County grants your request for extension to respond
to comments on your proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an additional 10 days.
Please have all response comments submitted by 5 PM April 7, 2023 or request
another extension by that time.
 
Thank you.
 
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
 
 
 

From: Joel Greear <joel@centralpavingllc.com> 
Sent: Thursday, March 23, 2023 7:28 PM
To: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Chad Bala <bala.ce@gmail.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>; Dan
Carlson <dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Chris Cruse <chris@cruseandassoc.com>
Subject: Re: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do
not click links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you
recognize the sender and have verified the content is safe.

 
Hi Jeremiah, 
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Per your letter dated 3/13/2023, Thorp Landing Long Plat, LP-23-00001 Transmittal of
Comments (attached), Thorp Landing, LLC is requesting additional time to address the
comments. At this time we request an additional 10 days, extending the deadline for
response to 4/7/2023. Please confirm receipt of this request.

Thank you,

Joel Greear

O: 509-929-1044
C: 509-899-7371
www.centralpavingllc.com
Equal Opportunity Employer
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it was originally addressed and
may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use
of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than the intended
recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from
any computer.
 
 
On Mon, Mar 13, 2023 at 9:40 AM Jeremiah Cromie
<jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> wrote:

Good morning,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your preliminary plat application
(LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing). I have also placed hard copies in the mail.
 
While the Public Works comments mentioned no survey review was performed, I
have sent the preliminary plat and associated documents to the county surveyor for
review. Any comments from him will be sent to you as soon as I receive them.
 
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
 
 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This
email may contain confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be
aware that any use, review, retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in
error, please contact the sender immediately and delete the material from all devices. 
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message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14 

 

Index #43



From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: "Joel Greear"
Cc: Chad Bala; Jeff Slothower; Dan Carlson; Chris Cruse
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
Date: Friday, April 14, 2023 8:39:02 AM

Joel,
 
Yes, we received your most recent request on Wednesday April 12, 2023 for an extension for
response comments. The County grants your request for extension to respond to comments on your
proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an additional 14 days from the previously required April

17th, 2023 deadline (established in April 5, 2023 e-mail). Please have all response comments
submitted by 5 PM May 1, 2023 or request another extension by that time.
 
Kittitas County considers all requests past the original March 28, 2023 deadline to be a mutually
agreed upon extension of time under KCC 15A.03.040(4)(d) that does not count towards time
elapsed towards 120 days for notice of a decision under KCC 15A.03.090, RCW 36.70B.080 and WAC
365-196-845(10).
 
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
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2023 7:52 PM
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
 
Confirming you received my request?

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

 
 
On Wed, Apr 12, 2023 at 11:34 AM Joel Greear <joel@centralpavingllc.com> wrote:

Hi Jeremiah,
 
We are still  working through the comments from the fire marshal, and request additional time to
work these out. At this time we request an additional 14 days from the 4-17-2023 deadline (per
your email dated 4/5/2023), extending the deadline to 5/1/2023. Please confirm receipt of this
request.
 
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

 
 
On Wed, Apr 5, 2023 at 2:39 PM Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> wrote:

Chad,
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Thank you for the response. The County grants your request for extension to respond to
comments on your proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an additional 10 days from the

previously required April 7th, 2023 deadline (established in March 24, 2023 e-mail). Please have
all response comments submitted by 5 PM April 17, 2023 or request another extension by that
time.
 
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
Cc: Joel Greear <joel@centralpavingllc.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>; Dan
Carlson <dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Chris Cruse <chris@cruseandassoc.com>
Subject: Re: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the
sender and have verified the content is safe.

 

Jeremiah, 
On behalf of Thorp Landing LLC, I am requesting additional time to address the comments
pertaining to LP-23-00001.  At this time we request an additional 10 days from the April 7th,
2023 deadline (per your email dated 3-24-2023), extending the deadline to 4-17-2023.  
Please confirm receipt of this request.
 
Thank you
 
Chad
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On Mar 24, 2023, at 8:05 AM, Jeremiah Cromie
<jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> wrote:
 
Joel,
 
Thank you for the response. The County grants your request for extension to
respond to comments on your proposal (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing) for an
additional 10 days. Please have all response comments submitted by 5 PM April 7,
2023 or request another extension by that time.
 
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
Cc: Chad Bala <bala.ce@gmail.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>;
Dan Carlson <dan.carlson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Chris Cruse
<chris@cruseandassoc.com>
Subject: Re: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Transmittal of Comments
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network.
Do not click links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance
unless you recognize the sender and have verified the content is safe.

 
Hi Jeremiah, 
 
Per your letter dated 3/13/2023, Thorp Landing Long Plat, LP-23-00001
Transmittal of Comments (attached), Thorp Landing, LLC is requesting
additional time to address the comments. At this time we request an additional 10
days, extending the deadline for response to 4/7/2023. Please confirm receipt of
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this request.

Thank you,

Joel Greear

O: 509-929-1044
C: 509-899-7371
www.centralpavingllc.com
Equal Opportunity Employer
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it was originally
addressed and may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review, retransmission,
dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or
entities other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the
sender and delete the material from any computer.
 
 
On Mon, Mar 13, 2023 at 9:40 AM Jeremiah Cromie
<jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> wrote:

Good morning,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your preliminary plat
application (LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing). I have also placed hard copies in the
mail.
 
While the Public Works comments mentioned no survey review was performed,
I have sent the preliminary plat and associated documents to the county
surveyor for review. Any comments from him will be sent to you as soon as I
receive them.
 
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
 
 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed.
This email may contain confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, be aware that any use, review, retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If
you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately and delete the material from all devices. 
message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14 
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From: Joe Dietzel
To: "Chad Bala"; "kcfd1@fairpoint.net"; Darren Higashiyama; Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: Thorp Landing Subdivision
Date: Wednesday, April 26, 2023 2:49:19 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Good Afternoon,
 
After further review of the information regarding the 5 acre lots to be built on Thorp Landing Lane,
the fire flow requirements and the fire hydrant system requirements are hereby waived. The lots are
required to be sprinklered from the irrigation canal(s), the lots are low hazard WUIC scores, and the
lots do not have a high ability to expose to other structures in the event of a fire. Thank you for your
time.
 
Joseph A Dietzel
Kittitas County
Deputy Fire Marshal
509-962-7657
joe.dietzel@co.kittitas.wa.us
 

 
 
 

 
To schedule inspections: https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/building/inspection-request.aspx OR call
(509) 962-7694
To view permit or inspection status: https://co-kittitas-
wa.smartgovcommunity.com/ApplicationPublic/ApplicationHome
If this is a public records request, please go to: https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/request/default.aspx
 

The information transmitted by this email is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed. This email may contain
confidential and/or privileged material. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, be aware that any use, review,
retransmission, distribution, or reproduction is strictly prohibited. If you received this in error, please contact the sender immediately and
delete the material from all devices. 
message id: 38eb45916c6dcbdac24bb8719d004a14 
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From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: "Chad Bala"; Joel Greear; Jeff Slothower; Chris Cruse; Jeff Greear
Cc: Jamey Ayling; Dan Carlson
Subject: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Request for Additional Information (Traffic Concurrency)
Date: Friday, May 5, 2023 5:01:51 PM
Attachments: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing Transporation Concurrency Required Letter 5-5-23.pdf

Hello,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your plat application (LP-23-00001 Thorp
Landing). Kittitas County needs the transportation concurrency done prior to issuing a SEPA decision
as seen in the letter.
 
Let us know if you have any questions.
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
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411 N. Ruby St. Suite 1  TEL (509) 962-7523
Ellensburg, WA  98926 FAX (509) 962-7663

KITTITAS COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

TRANSPORTATION CONCURRENCY 
MANAGEMENT APPLICATION 

Concurrency Review:  $3,690.00 Payment Method:   Check _______  Cash  Credit Card 

Owner Name   Permit #_______________ 
Mailing Address 

Phone Number 
Email Address 

Agent Name 
Mailing Address 

Phone Number 
Email Address 

   

  

 

 

Applicant will be contacted by Public Works to coordinate a meeting with the Director of 
Public Works and/or the County Engineer to discuss terms of the Transportation Evaluation. 

Application is hereby made for permit(s) to authorize the activities described herein.  I certify that I am 
familiar with the information contained in this application, and that to the best of my knowledge and belief 
such information is true, complete, and accurate.  I further certify that I possess the authority to undertake the 
proposed activities.  I hereby grant to the agencies to which this application is made, the right to enter the 
above-described location to inspect the proposed and or completed work.  I also acknowledge that said fee for 
this application includes 12 hours of review any work beyond those hours included in said fee will be billed 
monthly at an hourly rate of $243.00. 

Signature of Authorized Agent: Date: 

X 

Signature of Landowner of Record: Date: 
(Required for application submittal) 

X 

DATE STAMP 

Application Information: 
Number of Lots to be created:  ____________ 
Tax Parcel/Assessor’s Map No.: _____ 
Plat or Project Name:  
Roads Serving Project:  

______ 

Proposed Land Use:     Residential  Commercial  Agricultural

Proposed Land Use Project:      Short Plat    Long Plat  Building Permit
 Other

Total Number of Lots/Dwelling Units:  
Commercial/Agricultural Building Area in square feet: 
If known, ADT and ITE land use code:   

Narrative project description: 

Describe present use of property: 

Are there any other pending applications or issues associated with this property? 
 YES  NO  If yes, describe:  

10 residential lots
443233/18-17-11040-0033

Thorp Landing LLC
1401 W Dolarway Rd Ste 301, Ellendburg, WA 98926-9823

509-929-3980

Thorp Landing
Thorp Highway N

x

10 lots/10 single family homes

10-unit single family subdivision

Vacant Land

121 Daily Trips/ LUC 210
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8730 Tallon Lane NE, Suite 200  Lacey, WA 98516  Office 360.352.1465  Fax 360.352.1509  scjalliance.com 

Technical Memo 

 

To Joel Greear, Thorp Landing, LLC 

From: Ryan Shea, PTP 

Date: May 11, 2023 

Project: Thorp Landing  

Subject Trip Generation and Distribution Memo 

  

Introduction 

Thorp Landing, LLC is proposing to construct a 10-unit single family subdivision in Kittitas County, Washington. 

This project is located north of I-90 along Thorp Depot Road and Goodwin Road. This trip generation and 

distribution memo identifies the potential traffic that could be added by the proposed project.  

Figure 1 illustrates the site vicinity and the transportation network serving the project area.  

Figure 1. Site Vicinity 

 

Index #48



 
 
 
 
 
 

Thorp Landing -Trip Generation and Distribution Memo  2023-0511   |   2 of 4 

Proposed Development 

The proposed Thorp Landing project will develop vacant land as a new 10-unit single-family residential plat. The 

project site is located north of I-90 along Thorp Depot Road and Goodwin Road, located within the 

unincorporated community of Thorp in Kittitas County. The total project site is approximately 54 acres. 

Site access is expected to be provided via one intersection on Thorp Highway N. Regional access will be provided 

via I-90 which intersects Thorp Highway south of the project site. 

A preliminary site plan for the project is attached to the report. 

Project Traffic Characteristics 

The two project-related characteristics having the most effect on area traffic conditions are peak hour trip 

generation and the directional distribution of traffic volumes on the surrounding roadway network. These are 

discussed in the following paragraphs. 

Site Generated Traffic Volumes 

Vehicle trip generation was estimated using the trip generation rates contained in the 11th edition of the Trip 
Generation Manual by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). The land-use category “Single-Family 
Detached Housing” (land-use code 210) with the variable of dwelling units was determined to be the most 
applicable to this project. For this analysis, the “fitted-curve” equation was used to estimate trips in preference 
to using a specific trip rate as this approach was recommended by ITE. 

The trip generation rates used for the proposed project are shown in Table 1. 

Table 1 Trip Generation Rates -  

Single-Family Detached Housing (Land-Use Code 210) 

Time Period Variable Trip Rate Enter % Exit % 

AM Peak Hour Dwelling Units 0.92 26% 74% 

PM Peak Hour Dwelling Units 1.141 63% 37% 

Daily Dwelling Units 12.131 50% 50% 

1. Fitted Curve Equation Rate 

The total trip generation expected from this project is calculated by applying the unit measure (dwelling units) to 

the appropriate trip generation rate. The AM peak hour, PM peak hour and daily trip generation for the 

proposed Thorp Landing project is shown in Table 2 below.  

Table 2. Project Trip Generation  

Time Period Size Total Trips Enter  Exit  

AM Peak Hour 10 9 2 7 

PM Peak Hour 10 11 7 4 

Daily 10 121 61 60 
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It should be noted that previously the project site was two separate parcels that would have each been 

expected to contain one single-family home. While the project proposes to construct 10 homes, this is 

ultimately only a net increase of 8 homes from what was previously constructable. However, as these homes 

were not constructed, this letter presents the traffic associated with all 10 proposed homes. 

Site Traffic Distribution and Assignment 

For this study, the regional distribution of traffic to and from the proposed project was estimated based on the 

existing roadway system. It is expected that most of the project traffic will travel to/from the south to I-90. The 

regional traffic distribution percentages and site traffic assignment for the proposed development for the AM 

peak hour and PM peak hour is shown on Figure 2 

Figure 2. Site Traffic Distribution and Assignment 
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The proposed Thorp Landing project is estimated to generate 9 trip ends during the AM peak hour and 11 trip 

ends during the PM peak hour. Due to the relatively low trip generation, it is not expected that further traffic 

analysis related to potential project impacts is necessary. 

Thank you for reviewing the enclosed materials. If you have any questions or comments, please contact me or  

Respectfully, 

SCJ Alliance 

 

 

Ryan Shea, PTP, Senior Transportation Planner 

 

Attachments: 

Preliminary Site Plan 
N:\Projects\6319 Central Paving LLC\23-000120 Thorp Landing\04 - Dels\Reports\2023-0511 Thorp Landing Trip Gen.docx 
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“Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 

 

Notice of Public Hearing and SEPA Action 

Thorp Landing Preliminary Plat 

LP-23-00001 

 
To:   Applicable Agencies 

  Parties of Record 

  Applicant 

 

From:   Jeremiah Cromie, Planner II 

 

Date:  June 1, 2023 

 

Subject: Thorp Landing Preliminary Plat (LP-23-00001)  

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Kittitas County CDS and Kittitas County Hearings Examiner will meet at 

6:00 p.m. on June 22, 2023 to conduct a virtual public hearing to consider the Thorp Landing Long Plat (LP-23-

00001). The proposal includes creating 10 residential lots ranging in size from 5 acres to 8.64 acres on parcels 

443233 and 493233. The subject parcels are zoned Agricultural 5 within a Rural Residential Land Use 

Designation. The property is located approximately .5 miles northwest of the intersection of N Thorp Hwy and I-

90 off of Thorp Landing Lane. 

 

Interested parties may also attend the hearing by using one of the methods listed below: 

 

1. By online Webex video conferencing: Meeting Link: 
https://kittitascounty.webex.com/kittitascounty/j.php?MTID=m7f1de461c6989ad36917fb25471fa1f8  
 

2. By https://kittitascounty.webex.com or the Cisco Webex App on your phone or electronic device:  

Meeting Number: 2480 191 7516 Meeting Password: Hearing 
 

3. By telephone: 1-408-418-9388, Meeting Number: 2480 191 7516 

 

Instruction for how to participate in virtual public hearings may be found at: 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/uploads/documents/cds/Virtual%20Public%20Hearing%20Instructions.pdf.   

  

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that pursuant to WAC 197-11-355, Kittitas County Community Development 

Services did on, June 1, 2023, issue a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for the Thorp Landing Long Plat 

application (LP-23-00001). 

 

The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant adverse impact on 

the environment.  An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c).  This 

decision was made after review of a SEPA environmental checklist, other information on file with the lead agency 

and after considering existing laws and regulations that will be implemented by the applicant as part of the permit 

process.  This information is available to the public on request.   

 

This DNS is issued after using the optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355.  There is no further comment 
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period on the DNS.  Any action to set aside, enjoin, review, or otherwise challenge this administrative SEPA 

action on the grounds of noncompliance with the provisions of Chapter 43.21C RCW shall be commenced on or 

before June 15, 2023 by 5:00 PM. The current appeal fee is $1670.00. 

 

Anyone with an interest in this matter is urged to attend this noticed virtual hearing where testimony will be 

taken. Written comments will also be received. Documents may be viewed at 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx, under “Long Plats” under file number “LP-23-00001 

Thorp Landing,” or at Kittitas County Community Development Services, 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2, Ellensburg, 

WA 98926 prior to the hearing. The staff report for the plat will be available on the county website at least one 

week prior to the hearing (June 15). Interested persons are encouraged to verify date and time prior to attending. 

 

Contact: Jeremiah Cromie, Planner II 

(509) 962-7046, jeremiah.cromie@co.kttitas.wa.us  
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From: Mau, Russell E (DOH)
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH); Holly Erdman; Jesse Cox
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Public Hearing & SEPA Action
Date: Monday, June 5, 2023 8:39:39 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Jeremiah:
 
I have re-reviewed the previous communications – the “confusion” regards the applicant continuing
to identify a “10 parcel” development, versus expanding an existing Group B water system for 2 of
the parcels and then a stand-alone Group B for the other 8 parcels. So, if the applicant does continue
with the “10 parcel” development, then my comments apply, and I would like added to the record.
 
Thanks,
 
 
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
Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 8:13 AM
To: Mau, Russell E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV>
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH) <brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov>; Holly Erdman
<Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jesse Cox <jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: RE: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Public Hearing & SEPA Action
 

External Email

Russell,
 
This was not a call for comments but rather just a notice of SEPA action taken and notice of a public
hearing. Since you previously commented on this application, this notice was sent to you.
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Since we have noticed the public hearing, you can submit comments for that. Would you like these
comments to be added to the record and transmitted to the hearings examiner for the public
hearing?
 
 
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
Sent: Saturday, June 3, 2023 8:00 PM
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
 
The Department of Health (DOH) Office of Drinking Water (ODW) has reviewed this application and
has the following comments:
 

In terms of groundwater extraction, the 10 parcel development appears to meet the
definition of a “project”. As a project, the groundwater extraction needs to be evaluated as a
total, whether the exempt well limit or any water right limit – i.e., the applicant cannot simply
install 10 exempt wells. The applicant should consult with the Department of Ecology to
confirm.
As a 10 lot development, if drinking water is provided as a collective water system, the water
system meets the definition of both a public water system and a Group A public water system.
As a Group A public water system, the applicant would need to submit a water system
application to DOH ODW. DOH ODW requires a Group A water application to be completed by
a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Washington.
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If anyone has any questions or concerns, please contact DOH.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 9:53 AM
To: darren.higashiyama <darren.higashiyama@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Public Health Inspectors
<PublicHealthInspectors@co.kittitas.wa.us>; 'steve@snoqualmietribe.us'
<steve@snoqualmietribe.us>; 'dahp@snoqualmietribe.us' <dahp@snoqualmietribe.us>;
'adam@snoqualmietribe.us' <adam@snoqualmietribe.us>; Jeremy Larson
<jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph Mifflin <stephanie.mifflin@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
kelee.hodges.pw <kelee.hodges.pw@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Candie Leader
<candie.leader@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Tate Mahre <tate.mahre@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Mau, Russell E
(DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV>; 'guy.moura@colvilletribes.com'
<guy.moura@colvilletribes.com>; 'sam.rushing@colvilletribes.com'
<sam.rushing@colvilletribes.com>; 'connor.armi.hsy@colvilletribes.com'
<connor.armi.hsy@colvilletribes.com>; 'darnell.sam.adm@colvilletribes.com'
<darnell.sam.adm@colvilletribes.com>; 'john.sirois.adm@colvilletribes.com'
<john.sirois.adm@colvilletribes.com>; 'milton.davis.adm@colvilletribes.com'
<milton.davis.adm@colvilletribes.com>; Graham, Ken (PARKS) <Ken.Graham@PARKS.WA.GOV>;
Jazdzyk, Eric (Parks) <Eric.Jazdzyk@PARKS.WA.GOV>; Petropoulos, Terra (ECY)
<tebu461@ECY.WA.GOV>; White, Lori (ECY) <lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>; Neet, Wendy (ECY)
<wnee461@ECY.WA.GOV>; 'crosepacoordinatior@ecy.wa.gov' <crosepacoordinatior@ecy.wa.gov>;
Anderson, Ryan (ECY) <rand461@ECY.WA.GOV>; Kossik, Christopher (ECY)
<CKOS461@ECY.WA.GOV>; 'westsideirrigationco@gmail.com' <westsideirrigationco@gmail.com>;
'1riegelfarm@gmail.com' <1riegelfarm@gmail.com>; 'pdempsey@hnw.law' <pdempsey@hnw.law>;
'fudaczj@gmail.com' <fudaczj@gmail.com>; 'boitanoeri@hotmail.com' <boitanoeri@hotmail.com>;
'boitano17@hotmail.com' <boitano17@hotmail.com>; 'donkdoc@gmail.com'
<donkdoc@gmail.com>; 'kcfd1@fairpoint.net' <kcfd1@fairpoint.net>;
'Jacob.Prilucik@wsdot.wa.gov' <Jacob.Prilucik@wsdot.wa.gov>; 'SCPlanning@wsdot.wa.gov'
<SCPlanning@wsdot.wa.gov>; 'AviationLandUse@wsdot.wa.gov'
<AviationLandUse@wsdot.wa.gov>; Chad Bala <bala.ce@gmail.com>; 'Joel Greear'
<joel@centralpavingllc.com>; Jeff Slothower <Jslothower@lwhsd.com>
Cc: Jamey Ayling <jamey.ayling@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Kelly Bacon (CD)
<kelly.bacon.cd@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Chace Pedersen <chace.pedersen@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Notice of Public Hearing & SEPA Action
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External Email

Good morning,
 
Attached to this e-mail you will find the following items related to the Thorp Landing Long Plat (LP-
23-00001):

 
Notice of SEPA Action and Public Hearing Notice
SEPA Determination Non-significance (DNS), and
Instructional materials for the Virtual Public Hearing set for June 22, 2023.

 
Below are the links to all documents associated with the Thorp Landing Long Plat application (Please
note the cultural resources report mentioned is not public record and is not a part of the files):
 
LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - Internal
 
LP-23-00001 Thorp Landing - External
 
The staff report will be uploaded at least one week before the hearing date (June 15) to the website.
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.
 
 
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

CDS@CO.KITTITAS.WA.US 

Office (509) 962-7506 

Fax (509) 962-7682 
                                                                                                                                                                          

“Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 

STAFF REPORT 

THORP LANDING LONG PLAT (LP-23-00001) 
 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Requested Action:  Thorp Landing LLC submitted an application for a 10-lot plat on 2 parcels totaling 54.39 

acres of land.  The proposal includes 10 residential lots ranging in size from 5.00 acres to 8.64 acres. The subject 

parcels are zoned Agriculture 5. It is part of a Rural Residential Land Use designation. These parcels had a land 

use designation change from Rural Working to Rural Residential and a zoning change from Agriculture 20 to 

Agriculture 5 under Ordinance 2022-017 (RZ/CP-22-00002 Thorp Landing) that was part of the County’s 2022 

annual docket cycle for changes to the comprehensive plan, zoning map and development regulations. 

 

Location: Two tax parcels (443233 and 493233), located approximately .5 miles northwest of the intersection of 

N. Thorp Hwy and I-90 off of Thorp Landing Lane in Section 11, Township 18, Range 17, W.M.; Kittitas 

County. The properties bear Kittitas County Map numbers 18-17-11040-0033 and 18-17-11040-0007. 

 

 

II. SITE INFORMATION 

 

Total Project Size:  54.39 acres 

Number of Proposed Lots: 10 (2 currently existing) 

Domestic Water:  2 Group B Wells (Existing one to serve 2 lots, New one to serve 8 lots) 

Sewage Disposal:  Septic  

Fire Protection:   Thorp (Fire District 1) 

Irrigation District:  Westside Irrigating Company 

 

Site Characteristics:  

North: Residential/Town of Thorp  

South: Residential/Some farmland  

East: A Few Residential Lots/Vacant Land 

West: Mostly Farming Uses 

 

Access:  Access to the site will be via Thorp Landing Lane (a private drive) from N. Thorp Highway.   

 

 

III. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW 

 

Deemed Complete: A Long Plat Application and SEPA Checklist were submitted to Kittitas County Community 

Development Services on January 10, 2023 (Index #1 & 16). The application was deemed complete on February 

7, 2023 (Index #20). A petition for review of the County’s redesignation of the property from a land use 

designation from Rural Working to Rural Residential and zoning change from Agriculture 20 to Agriculture 5 

was submitted to the Growth Management Hearings Board on February 12, 2023 after the application had been 

deemed complete on February 7, 2023 and therefore vested. 

 

Notice of Application:  The site was posted pursuant to KCC 15A.03.110 on February 9, 2023 (Index #21). Two 

posting sites were established (One off of Thorp Landing Lane and the other near Goodwin Road). A Notice of 

Application was mailed to all state and local agencies/departments with potential interest in the project as required 

by KCC 15A.03.060, as well as to adjacent landowners located within five hundred (500) feet of any portion of 
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2 

 

the boundary of the proposal's contiguous tax parcels on February 21, 2023 and noticed in the local county paper 

of record on February 21, 2023 (Index #23). The comment period for this notice ended on March 9, 2023. Some 

comments were transmitted to the applicant on March 13, 2023 (Index #38) and full comments were transmitted 

on March 15, 2023 to the applicant (Index #40). 

 

IV.  ZONING & DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

The subject property is located approximately .65 miles northwest of the I-90 Thorp Exit and has a zoning 

designation of Agriculture 5. The purpose and intent of Agriculture 5 zone is to provide for an area where various 

agricultural activities and low-density residential developments co-exist compatibly. 

 

The minimum lot size in Agriculture 5 districts is 5 acres unless in a cluster plat as seen in KCC 17.28A.030. As 

this property is not a cluster plat, the size of all lots must be at least 5 acres. As proposed, the plat meets the 5-acre 

minimum lot size criteria. KCC 17.28A.030 also requires the minimum average width to be at least 250 feet. All 

parcels except for one are greater than 250 feet in width, however averaging out the lot widths of all 10 lots 

achieves an average of 394.56 feet per lot which meets the width requirements. 

 

The created parcels with potential future dwellings must be served by a legal 60 foot right of way or existing 

county road under KCC 17.28A.100. North Thorp Highway is an existing county road and Thorp Landing Lane is 

a private drive easement that is 60 feet wide which meets these criteria. 

 

Preliminary Plats:  The plat map submitted with the current application was reviewed under the existing KCC 

16.12 Preliminary Plats and meets all requirements.  

 

 

V.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

The Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan designates the proposal site as “Rural Residential”.  Kittitas County has 

established the following goals and policies to guide activities that are designated in these lands.  These goals and 

policies were developed in response to identified needs within the county, and support the County Wide Planning 

Policies:  

 

RR-G2: Opportunities should exist for traditional rural lifestyle and rural based economies. 

 

Consistency Statement 

The proposed plat provides for people to live a traditional rural lifestyle and support the rural based economy 

especially being near the small town of Thorp. 

 

RR-G10: The County should look for opportunities for a variety or rural density and housing choices while 

maintaining rural character and protecting health and safety. 

 

Consistency Statement 

This plat provides housing choices on 5 acres which is a variety of rural density and does not require local 

government services to meet the housing needs of the county. The county and state have found 5 acres to be 

consistent with rural character. 

 

RR-G20: Protect residential activities from flooding areas and natural hazard areas. 

 

Consistency Statement: 

The plat provides sufficient area outside the 100-year flood zone and outside the Type F stream building setback 

for future housing. 
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RR-P25:  New rural development shall provide adequate water for domestic use. 

 

Consistency Statement 

The plat will have 2 Group B well systems that are approved through Kittitas County Public Health that will 

provide adequate water for domestic use. 

 

CDS staff reviewed the project for consistency with the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan as described 

above. CDS finds the proposed development consistent with the Goals and Policies of the Kittitas County 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

VI. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 

A critical areas review of the parcel was conducted by CDS staff. There is a Type F Stream on the northern side 

of the project that has a 100’ buffer and what looks like an irrigation line running through the SW portion of 

parcel 443233. Floodplain is located on the northeastern corner of parcels 443233 and 493233 A Critical area 

report conducted by GG Environmental was submitted to the County with the application materials (Index #14). 

This report indicated no jurisdictional wetlands and recognized the unnamed creek as a Type F stream with a 100-

foot setback. 

 

Kittitas County CDS issued a DNS for this project on June, 2023 (See Index #50) after utilizing the optional DNS 

process under WAC 197-11-355. 

 

At the time of this writing, the SEPA DNS decision has not been appealed. 

 

VII. AGENCY AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Applicable agencies, adjacent property owners, and interested parties have been given the opportunity to review 

this proposal and have been notified of the Public Hearing. Timely comments were received from the following 

agencies: Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water, Snoqualmie Tribe, Westside Irrigating Company, 

Kittitas County Public Health, Washington Department of Transportation – Aviation Division, Kittitas County 

Fire Marshal, Colville Tribe, Washington State Parks, Department of Ecology and Kittitas County Public Works. 

Public Comments were received from the following people (Index #’s 34-36):  

 

1. Johnny & Erinn Boitano, 

2. David, Lyla, Jarred and Ryan Fudacz, 

3. Paula Thompson 

 

Below are summaries of the substantive agency and public comments submitted as well as the response from the 

applicant regarding the comments. For full context and details please see Index #s 24-37, 39 and 44. Applicant 

responses can be seen in Index #45. 

 

Snoqualmie Tribe: Snoqualmie Tribe commented that they do not have substantive comments at this time but if 

the project scope were to change, they reserve the right to modify their position. 

 

Applicant response: “At this time the plat will not be modified. Please also see RLR’s cultural resources 

report dated July 5, 2022.” 

 

Staff response: CDS staff provided these comments to the applicant and there is no change in plans 

considered at this time. 

 

WSDOT Aviation: WSDOT Aviation found that there are no land use compatibility or airspace issues in relation 

to local airports. 
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Applicant response: “Agreed. This plat has no airspace issues with local airports.” 

 

Staff response: CDS staff provided these comments to the applicant. 

 

 

Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water (DOH-ODW): DOH-ODW commented that the project would 

be provided by a Group B water system that requires approval from Kittitas County Public Health in their initial 

comments on February 22, 2023. Public Health commented that their JPR with DOH that they don’t approve 

above 9 connections at the county so that the applicant would need to work with DOH for a system for 10 lots. 

DOH on February 23rd, 2023 then asked for clarification on what the applicant is proposing for the water system 

on these lots and if they were expanding the existing “Thorp Landing” water system. Staff then clarified on March 

1, 2023 that the applicant was using an existing group B well to serve 2 of the new lots and a new group B well to 

serve the other 8 lots. After this clarification, DOH said that the two Group B water systems would be considered 

a “project” for ground water withdrawal and water rights and could not withdraw more than 5,000 gallons a day. 

They advised the applicant to confirm this with Ecology on the matter. They also said that the proposal for 

expansion of a group B well and a new group B well would be handled by Kittitas County Public Health. DOH 

sent new comments for the notice of Public Hearing on June 5, 2023, stating that if 10 lots are served as a 

collective water system, then it would require a Group A Water System that would have to be approved by them 

(Index #52). 

 

Applicant response: “The plat will have 2 lots served by an existing and approved Group B well and a 

new Group B well is proposed on Lot 7 that will serve the rest of the proposed plat. The existing Group B 

Water system is not being expanded and is approved for 6 connections (see Exhibit 10 of application 

submittal). Also see e-mail chain from February 22 and March 1, 2023. All domestic water to serve the 

property which is the subject of this plat application will be withdrawn from two wells. One well has 

already been classified as a Group B system, and it serves lots not involved with the plat, but which are 

described as Kittitas County Tax Parcel Nos. 19588, 19589, 19590, 19591, 19592, and 19593. Two of 

these lots are owned by third parties and they had building permits issued after the current landowner 

bought a Kittitas County Mitigation Package. The plat will add 10 lots to the above six lots, for a total of 

16 lots. Each lot may withdraw 275 gallons per day, so the combined withdrawal of ground water from 

the property is under 5,000 gallons per day. Because all of the property has irrigation water from the West 

Side Irrigation Company, there is no need for any outdoor irrigation to occur using ground water. The 

applicant, through covenants, conditions, and restrictions, will restrict individuals acquiring lots within 

the plat to 275 gallons of water per day with no outdoor use of water. Additionally, see responses related 

to outdoor irrigation below in response to the West Side Irrigation Company's comments.” 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff transmitted these comments to the applicant and has proposed a condition to 

this proposal to get a Group B Well approvals from Kittitas County Public Health if they are adding 2 

connections to an existing well and adding a new group B well. Staff have also proposed a condition for 

the plat to get a group A well approval from the state department of health if any system is to serve 10 or 

more lots.  

 

 

Department of Ecology: The Department of Ecology made comments on the withdrawal of groundwater and said 

anything beyond 5,000 gallons of water per day withdrawn requires authorization from the Department of 

Ecology. 

 

 Applicant Response: See response to the Department of Health Comments 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff provided comments to the applicant and proposed a condition to obtain 

approval from the Department of Ecology if planning on withdrawing over 5,000 gallons of water a day. 
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Colville Tribe: Colville Tribe requested an inadvertent discovery plan be in place prior to implementation. They 

also say if ground disturbing activities are to be conducted, then a cultural resource survey and sub-surface testing 

should be done. 

 

Applicant Response: RLR Arch. & Cultural Resources has already surveyed the property and 

recommends the project to proceed as planned. Kittitas county is the overseer for future development 

within the plat. Yakama Nation has already reviewed the survey and agreed to its findings. There has 

been an Inadvertent Discovery Plan already established. 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff is in receipt of the cultural resources survey. This survey was done for the road 

building of Thorp Landing Lane for Kittitas County SEPA Application SE-22-00015 but did not 

incorporate the entire plat area. Staff has recommended the proposal to have the inadvertent discovery 

plan in place during all ground disturbing activities. 

 

Kittitas County Fire Marshal: The Kittitas County Fire Marshal’s Office provided comments related to fire 

apparatus access roads, fire flow, hydrant systems and wildfire protection requirements on February 8, 2023. Staff 

received an e-mail from the Fire Marshal’s office on April 26, 2023 (See Index #44) that previous fire flow and 

fire hydrant requirements for this plat are hereby waived and the lots are to be sprinkled from the irrigation 

canal(s) and that the lots are low hazard WUIC scores and do not have a high ability to expose to other structures 

in the event of a fire. 

 

Applicant Response: At this time, there is no gate proposed and a key box will not be needed. Please see 

the Exhibit B, per the Fire Marshal E-mail, fire flow and hydrant systems are waived. 

 

Staff response: Staff has recommended a plat note that requires all structures to be sprinkled and all roads 

constructed to meet International Fire Code (IFC) requirements. 

 

Westside Irrigating Company (WSIC): WSIC commented that this plat lies wholly within their service area and 

that there are two turnouts on the Main Canal. They referenced KCC 16.18 which talks about provisions for the 

orderly system of providing irrigation water to property to be subdivided and requires a water delivery system 

with rights of way to each new lot to receive irrigation water. They talked about updated bylaws regarding 

subdivisions and that they have no formal objection to the proposal.  

 

Applicant Response: The applicant agrees to this regarding Westside Irrigating Company comments and 

conditions for the plat. The applicant is aware of Kittitas County Code 16.18 which sets forth the County 

requirements and the applicant is aware of the West Side Irrigation Company's rules and regulations 

regarding delivery of water. The applicant intends to provide two points for all lots within the plat to 

access water from the West Side Canal. The water will be delivered to each lot in a piped system, with 

each lot having an irrigation riser which will be metered. Further, through the use of covenants, 

conditions and restrictions, the applicant will require that the application of all West Side Irrigation 

Company water to lots within the plat for purposes of irrigation will be required to be through a sprinkler 

system. No flood irrigation of these lots will be allowed. 

 

Staff response: These comments have been provided to the applicant. Staff has recommended a condition 

to have a water delivery system (according to KCC 16.18) in place approved by WSIC prior to final plat 

approval. 

 

Washington State Parks & Recreation (State Parks): State Parks commented their concerns about trespassing, 

noise and light glare, and potential stormwater discharge. They said if the project proponent needs access to state 

park land, they need to apply for and obtain legal access for easement. 
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Applicant Response: The preliminary plat map was submitted as part of the application. If the plat is 

approved, it will eventually be recorded, and a record will be provided to State Parks. There is no access 

for this proposal to State Parks land and access is through Thorp Landing Lane. No trespassing and 

dumping signs will be established on the property line with State Parks Land. Typical county setbacks 

will apply to development on the property and CCR’s will cover noise, light and glare. The applicant has 

submitted an Ecology stormwater erosivity waiver and stormwater will stay on site and it is highly 

unlikely that that stormwater would ever discharge onto State Parks land. 

 

Staff response: Staff has recommended conditions relating to signs for no trespassing and keeping all 

stormwater on site. The county currently does not have regulations pertaining to light and glare. 

 

Kittitas County Public Health (KCPH): KCPH commented on well and septic requirements including the two 

proposed Group B water systems. 

 

Applicant response: The applicant contacted Holly Erdman at the Kittitas County Health Department 

regarding the public health comment. In discussions with Ms. Erdman, it is clear that the heading of her 

comment referencing the Conner Short Plat and the date of the comment are incorrect; however, 

the applicant was able to confirm that the substance of Ms. Erdman's comments on behalf of Kittitas 

County Public Health did in fact relate to this plat application. The applicant understands and agrees to 

her comments. Specifically, the applicant understands that prior to final plat approval, the applicant will 

have to comply with KCC 13.35.027, by providing a certificate of water budget neutrality or other 

adequate interest in water rights from a water bank. 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff has provided this comment to the applicant and proposed conditions regarding 

Group B well approvals, soil logs and water mitigation prior to final platting.  

 

Kittitas County Public Works (KCPW): KCPW provided comments on access requirements, roads meeting fire 

codes, and that no access should be done from Goodwin Road. They also commented about projected traffic trips 

and the possibility of needing a traffic impact analysis. They had comments about required plat notes, flood 

development and water mitigation. A follow up e-mail with updated comments on March 14, 2023 mentioned that 

the owner information and the engineer of record should be included on the face of the preliminary plat. 

 

Applicant response: The applicant agrees with Public Works conditions. The preliminary plat shows the 

location of the turnaround and that a portion of Thorp Landing Lane has been reviewed and approved by 

Kittitas County and was built. Thorp Landing Lane will be extended to serve this plat. 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff has provided this comment to the applicant and proposed conditions regarding 

various road standards, floodplain standards as well as required plat notes. The applicant provided a 

transportation concurrency application on 5-15-23 (TC-23-00004) with estimated traffic trips (Index #47). 

Kittitas County Public Works determined that this plat does not require any mitigation measures for 

traffic impacts on May 30, 2023 (Index #49).  

 

 

Fudacz Family: The Fudacz Family submitted comments and concerns regarding water runoff and irrigation water 

rights on the parcels including 3 springs as well as concerns about the applicant. They also said that the critical 

areas report submitted to the county is inadequate. 

 

Applicant response: The water rights issue was sorted out by the Ecology v. Acquavella case that the 

Fudacz family were a part of. There are limited claims to the water and easements by the Fudacz family 

over the applicant’s property. The applicant has no obligation to highlight perennial springs throughout 

the property and the report meets the county code and the Fudacz’s and did not produce their own report. 

No lots will have the ability to apply irrigation water to the property except through the West Side 
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Irrigation Company system that complies with their rules and regulations as well as the County’s. 

 

Staff response: Critical Area Reports do not require springs to be identified on them at this time under 

KCC 17A. Springs would need to be included if the county had requested a hydrogeological assessment 

in a critical aquifer recharge area. As this project is for residential lots, it does not fall under the 

applicability sections of KCC 17A.03.030. All irrigation easements and an irrigation delivery system will 

have to be shown on the final plat and be approved by the Westside Irrigating Company prior to final plat 

approval. 

 

Johnny & Erinn Boitano: Johnny & Erinn Boitano raised concerns about the aquifer and septic system approvals. 

They mention that during the summer, everyone flood irrigates their properties which brings the water table up 

and could contaminate the aquifer and negatively affect the surface water and drainage patterns. They also 

commented that the lots are in the floodplain. 

 

Applicant Response: This proposed ten lot plat is not completely within the floodplain. Only a small 

portion of the plat is in the 100 year and 500-year floodplain and is in the back portion of the lots. Kittitas 

County does allow people to build within the 100-year floodplain as long as flood development 

requirements are met. The plat proposes a Group B water system that will be approved by Kittitas County 

Public Health. Per the Kittitas County Health Department’s comment letter and county code, the proposed 

plat is allowed to apply for individual septic systems. 

 

Staff response:  There is sufficient space outside of the 100-year floodplain to build on all of the proposed 

lots. Kittitas County Public Health will have to approve all septic systems including soil logs prior to final 

plat approval that looks at things like groundwater. Staff has also recommended a condition that the lots 

not be flood irrigated. 

 

Paula Thompson: Paula Thompson commented on the 2022 comprehensive plan and rezone update saying it was 

inadequate and that the current SEPA checklist does not identify wetlands and perennial springs. She also 

commented on irrigation rights and delivery systems as well as drainage patterns. She had concerns about lots 

without fire hydrants and that a turn lane should be required on Thorp Hwy to turn onto Thorp Landing Lane. 

 

Applicant Response: Ms. Thompson did not file an appeal to the SEPA as part of the 2022 comprehensive 

plan and zoning change. She has now filed a petition to the Eastern Washington Growth Management 

Hearings Board but that petition does not matter as this application was vested prior to the petition as the 

county deemed it complete prior to that petition.  

 

Staff response:  The applicant provided a critical areas report done by a qualified professional that states 

there are no jurisdictional wetlands on the property and one Type F stream on the north side of the 

property. An irrigation system approved by Westside Irrigating Company will be required prior to final 

plat approval. Kittitas County received a transportation concurrency application from the applicant and 

found that no mitigation measures are required for the creation of 10 lots in this plat. 

 

CDS has reviewed all of the comments submitted and proposed conditions in this Staff Report to address 

many of the concerns noted. 

 

VIII. PROJECT ANALYSIS 

 

In review of this proposal, it is important to consider the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, applicable 

county code, public and agency comments, any identified environmental concerns and state and federal 

requirements.  Identified below is planning staff’s analysis and consistency review for the subject application. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: 
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The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan as seen in 

Section V of this staff report. The subdivision can help promote a rural lifestyle, only requires rural government 

services and provides options for housing and development that can take place outside of the floodplain. 

 

Consistency with the provision of KCC 17 Zoning: 

The proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC 17.28A. The lots are all over 5 acres and there is adequate 

size to put houses or other uses on the properties. All lots are served off Thorp Landing Lane from Thorp 

Highway which is an existing county road meeting the requirements of KCC 17.28A.100. 

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC 17A Critical Areas: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Critical Areas Code. The applicant submitted a critical areas 

report which indicated no wetlands on the property and one Type F stream.  The stream has a 100’ buffer (plus 

15’ additional building setback) which is shown in the plat map. The plat map also contains the 100-year 

floodplain. There are sufficient areas outside of required setbacks to build. CDS staff finds the project with 

recommended conditions consistent with KCC 17A Critical Areas.  

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC 16.12: Preliminary Plat Subdivision Code: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Subdivision Code (Title 16) for Preliminary Plats with the 

recommended conditions.   

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC Title 12: Roads and Bridges: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Title 12 Roads and Bridges with the recommended conditions. 

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC Title 20: Fire & Life Safety: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Title 20 Fire & Life Safety with the recommended conditions. 

 

IX.   RECOMMENDATION 

 

As conditioned below, the application does not appear to be detrimental to the general public health, safety or 

welfare and meets the basic intent and criteria associated with Title 12, Title 13, Title 16.12, Title 17A, Title 17, 

Title 17.28A and Title 20 of the Kittitas County Code as well as the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  Staff 

recommends approval of the Thorp Landing Preliminary Plat, subject to the following findings of fact, 

conclusions, and conditions: 

 

Suggested Findings of Fact 

 

1. Thorp Landing LLC submitted an application for a 10-lot plat on 2 parcels totaling 54.39 acres of land.  The 

proposal includes 10 residential lots ranging in size from 5.00 acres to 8.64 acres. The subject parcels are 

zoned Agriculture 5. It is part of a Rural Residential Land Use designation. These parcels had a land use 

designation change from Rural Working to Rural Residential and a zoning change from Agricultural 20 to 

Agricultural 5 under Ordinance 2022-017 (RZ/CP-22-00002 Thorp Landing) that was part of the County’s 

2022 annual docket cycle for changes to the comprehensive plan, zoning map and development regulations. 

 

2. Site Information:  

 

Total Project Size:  54.39 acres 

Number of Proposed Lots: 10 lots (2 currently existing) 

Domestic Water:  2 Group B Wells (Existing one to serve 2 lots, New one to serve 8 lots) 

Sewage Disposal:  Septic 

Fire Protection:  Thorp (Fire District 1) 

Irrigation District:  Westside Irrigating Company 

 

Index #56



                                                                                                                                                                         

 

9 

 

Site Characteristics:  

North: Residential/Town of Thorp  

South: Residential/Some farmland  

East: A Few Residential Lots/Vacant Land 

West: Mostly Farming Uses 

 

Access:  Access to the site will be via Thorp Landing Lane (a private drive) from N Thorp Highway.   

 

3. The Comprehensive Plan Land Use designation is Rural Residential for these properties. 

 

4. The subject properties are zoned Agriculture 5.  

 

5. A Long Plat Application and SEPA Checklist were submitted to Kittitas County Community Development 

Services on January 10, 2023. The application was deemed complete on February 7, 2023. A petition for 

review of the County’s redesignation of the property from a land use designation from Rural Working to 

Rural Residential and zoning change from Agriculture 20 to Agriculture 5 was submitted to the Growth 

Management Hearings Board of February 12, 2023 after the application had been deemed complete on 

February 7, 2023 and therefore vested. A Notice of Application was mailed to all state and local 

agencies/departments with potential interest in the project as required by KCC 15A.03.060, as well as to 

adjacent landowners located within five hundred (500) feet of any portion of the boundary of the proposal's 

contiguous tax parcels on February 21, 2023 and noticed in the local county paper of record on February 21, 

2023. The comment period for this notice ended on March 9, 2023 and some comments were transmitted to 

the applicant on March 13, 2023 with all comments transmitted March 15, 2023. The applicant responded to 

the comments on May 1, 2023.  

 

6. An DNS was issued by Kittitas County CDS on June 1, 2023.   

 

7. The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  The 

proposed subdivision will be adequately served by County services. Staff has conducted an administrative 

critical area review in accordance with KCC 17A and found that although critical areas exist on the parcel, 

appropriate buffers and mitigations have been recommended to minimize impacts and protect these critical 

areas. 

 

8. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the Kittitas County Zoning Codes 17.28A 

 

9. This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County 16.12 Subdivision Code for Preliminary Plats. 

 

10. This proposal as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 12: Roads and Bridges. 

 

11. This proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC 15 Environmental Policy. 

 

12. This proposal as conditioned, is consistent with KCC 17A Critical Areas. 

 

13. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with KCC Title 20, Fire & Life Safety. 

 

14. This proposal, as conditioned, will meet Kittitas County Road Standards. 

 

Suggested Conclusions: 

 

1. As conditioned, the development meets the goals, policies and implementation recommendations as set 

forth in the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan. 
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2. As conditioned, this proposal is consistent with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

 

3. Public use and interest will be served by approval of this proposal. 

 

4. As conditioned, the proposal is consistent with Kittitas County Code Title 16 Subdivision, Title 17 

Zoning, Title 17A Critical Areas, Title 15 Environmental, Title 12 Roads and Bridges and Title 20 Fire & 

Life Safety. 

 

 

Suggested Conditions of Approval: 

 

The project shall proceed in substantial conformance with the plans and application materials on file 

submitted on January 10, 2023 and transportation concurrency submitted May 15, 2023 except as amended by 

the conditions herein. 

 

 

1. Building 

 

A. The applicant is responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state and federal rules and 

regulations, and must obtain all appropriate permits and approvals. 

 

B. Environmental and statutory review may be required for all current and future development, construction, 

and improvements. The applicant and/or all future owners of any lot or lots within this subdivision are 

responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal rules, requirements, codes, and 

regulations. It is incumbent upon said applicants and future owners to investigate for, and obtain from the 

appropriate agency or their representative, all required permits, licenses, and approvals for any 

development, construction, and/or improvements that occur within the boundaries of this subdivision. 

 

C. All structures will need to be permitted and built to the current Kittitas County adopted building codes at 

the time of construction. 

 

2. Roads and Transportation   

 

A. Road Standards: This application is subject to the latest revision of the Kittitas County Road Standards, 

dated 12/15/2015. A performance guarantee may be used, in lieu of the required improvements, per the 

conditions outlined in KCC 12.01.150. 

 

i. Roads & Driveways: 

 

a. An approved access permit shall be required from the Department of Public Works prior to 

creating any new driveway access or performing work in the county road right-of-way. 

 

b. Private roads serving any of the lots within the development shall be inspected and certified by 

a licensed professional engineer for conformance with the 2015 Kittitas County Road 

Standards. This certification shall be completed prior to final plat approval or if a 

performance guarantee is used in lieu of the required improvements, the private road 

must be certified to comply with the minimum requirements of the International Fire 

Code prior to building permit issuance. 

 

c. Roads and Driveways longer than 150’ in length are required to provide a Fire Apparatus 

Road Turnaround meeting the requirements of Appendix D in the International Fire 

Code. 
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d. Maintenance of driveway approaches shall be the responsibility of the owner whose property 

they serve. The county will not maintain access. 

 

e. Future access onto proposed lots may not be accessed off a county road if there is an 

alternative road to access from. 

 

f. Kittitas County will not accept private roads for maintenance as public streets or roads until 

such streets or roads are brought into conformance with current County Road Standards and 

formally adopted by the Kittitas County Board of County Commissioners. 

 

g. Access is not guaranteed to any existing or created parcel on this application. 

 

h. Newly created lots shall access onto an internal road system and not directly onto a County 

Road.  

 

i. All road construction within the public or private right-of-way shall be designed by or under 

the direct supervision of a civil engineer, licensed to practice in the State of Washington. 

Please submit a road plan and profile drawings along with any associated drainage reports for 

a formal Civil Review to Kittitas County Public Works (KCC 12.04.020) 

 

ii. Other  

 

a. If over 100 cubic yards of material are displaced during construction, a grading permit shall be 

required. If over 500 cubic yards, an engineered grading permit shall be required. If the 

applicant plans on applying for final plat prior to building, a bond for construction shall be 

required 

 

b. Prior to the final platting process, a Civil Review of the plans will be required by Public Works. 

If the applicant is getting an engineered grading permit, the Civil Review will be included in 

the permit 

 

c. All plats must show the acceptance signature of the County Engineer. The acceptance block 

shall be as follows (per KCC 16.24.170): 

 

 
EXAMINED AND APPROVED 
This _____day of _____, A.D., 20___. 
______________________________ 
Kittitas County Engineer 

 
d. Contact the Kittitas County Rural Addressing Coordinator at 509-962-7523 to obtain addresses 

prior to obtaining a building permit. A parcel cannot receive a building permit or utilities until 

such parcel is identified with a 911 address. 

 
e. Mailboxes must be approved the U.S. Postal Service. Mailbox locations are site specific. 

Contact your local Post Office for location and design standards before beginning construction. 

 

f. All accesses and roads need to be compliant with the 2018 IFC including Appendix D. 
 

3. Survey 
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A. Owner, Engineer of Record, and Surveyor of Record shall be on final plat. 

 

B. A Title Report shall be submitted and the legal description on the Title Report shall match the legal 

description on the final plat. 

 

C. Controlling corners shall be noted, and property corners set. 

 

D. The boundaries along the Type F stream shall be delineated 

 

E. A right-of-way or easement shall be shown for an approved irrigation water delivery system as approved 

by the Westside Irrigation Company. 

 

F. The plat must show the acceptance signature of the Westside Irrigation Company. The acceptance block 

shall be as follows (per KCC 16.18.035): 

 

 
I hereby certify that the irrigation for the Thorp Landing Plat conforms to 
the requirements of Westside Irrigating Company. 
This _____day of _____, A.D., 20___. 
______________________________ 
Westside Irrigating Company Representative 
 

G. Lot Closures shall be submitted. Computer sheets shall be submitted with the final plat showing the 

closure of plat boundaries, blocks, lots or any tract. It is the responsibility of the Professional Licensed 

Surveyor (PLS) to ensure the lot closures are correct and accurate. 

 

4. Water/Sewer 

 

A. In accordance with KCC 13.35.027, the applicant shall provide one of the following documents before 

final plat approval: 

 

1. A letter from a water purveyor stating that the purveyor has adequate water rights and will 

provide the necessary water for the new use 

2. An adequate water right for the proposed new use 

3. A certificate of water budget neutrality from the Department of Ecology or other adequate 

interest in water rights from a water bank. 

 

B. All applicants for land divisions shall also submit information on “proximate parcels” held in “common 

ownership” as those terms are defined in WAC 173-539A-030 and otherwise demonstrate how the 

proposed new use will not violate RCW 90.44.050 as currently existing or hereafter amended. 

 

C. Failure to obtain mitigation before commencement of an activity requiring mitigation shall be a code 

violation subject to enforcement under Title 18 KCC. 

 

D. In accordance with KCC 13.04.090, a minimum of one soil log for each proposed lot where individual 

sewage disposal systems are contemplated must be completed and approved prior to final plat approval. 

 

E. The existing Group B water system must be approved and/or expanded to serve 2 lots of this plat prior to 

final plat approval. 
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F. The new proposed Group B water system must have a well drilled and a Group B water system approved 

to be able to serve 8 connections with a public water system ID # issued prior to obtaining final plat 

signature. 

 

G. If the proposed 10 lots are to be served a single water system, it shall be a Group A water system that is 

approved by the State Department of Health prior to final plat approval. 

 

H. Any Ground Water withdrawals over 5,000 gallons per day shall require authorization from the 

Department of Ecology. 

 

 

5. Other 

 

A. Applicant must meet all state and federal regulations. 

 

B. An Irrigation Water Delivery System as described in in KCC 16.18.030 shall be provided by the 

developer and approved by Westside Irrigating Company prior to final plat approval. 

 

C. All stormwater shall be kept on site or require a Construction Stormwater permit from the Department of 

Ecology 

 

D. No trespassing signs shall be put up on the boundary line of each lot that abuts with Washington State 

Parks land. A legal easement shall be required if wanting access to State Parks Land from this plat.  

 

E. Taxes must be paid in full on all tax parcels involved in this land use action as required by Washington 

State Law (RCW 84.40.042 & 84.56.345) prior to final plat recording 

 

F. All sheets of the final mylars shall reflect plat number LP-23-00001 and an accurate legal description 

shall be shown on the face of the final plat. Engineers and Surveyors need to be cognizant of the 

requirements related to Final Plats (KCC 16.20) and Survey Data and Dedications (KCC 16.24). The 

final plat must be submitted in full conformance with these chapters of Kittitas County Code; non-

compliant mylars will be rejected and returned to the applicant. A final plat number will be assigned 

when CDS receives your final plat application. This file number will also be required on the face of the 

final plat. 

 

G. There shall be no flood irrigating of the properties. 

 

 

H. Critical Areas 

 

1.  All final surveys shall include denotation of the Type F Stream and its 100’ buffer. 

 

2.  All final surveys shall include denotation of boundary of the 100-year floodplain. 

 

I. Cultural Resources 

 

1. Should ground disturbing or other activities related to the proposed subdivision result in the 

inadvertent discovery of cultural or archaeological materials, work shall be stopped in the immediate 

area and contact be made with the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation (DAHP), Yakama Nation, and Colville Tribe.  Work shall remain suspended until the 

find is assessed and appropriate consultation is conducted.  Should human remains be inadvertently 

discovered, as dictated by Washington State RCW 27.44.055, work shall be immediately halted in 
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the area and contact made with the coroner and local law enforcement in the most expeditious manner 

possible. 

 

6. Plat Notes 

 

A. The following plat notes shall be recorded on the final mylar drawings: 

 

1. Environmental and statutory review may be required for all current and future development, 

construction, and improvements. The applicant and/or all future owners of any lot or lots within 

this subdivision are responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal rules, 

requirements, codes, and regulations.  It is incumbent upon said applicants and future owners to 

investigate for, and obtain from the appropriate agency or their representative, all required 

permits, licenses, and approvals for any development, construction, and/or improvements that 

occur within the boundaries of this subdivision. 

 
2. All development must comply with International Fire Code. 

 
3. An approved access permit will be required from the Department of Public Works prior to 

creating any new driveway access or performing work within the county road right-of-way. 

 

4. Lots 5 & 6 shall not have access from Goodwin Road unless approved by Kittitas County Public 

Works. 

 
5. The approval of this division of land provides no guarantee that use of water under the ground 

water exemption (RCW 90.44.050) for this plat or any portion thereof will not be subject to 

curtailment by the Department of Ecology or a court of law. 

 
6. Metering is required for all new uses of domestic water for residential well connections and usage 

must be recorded in a manner consistent with Kittitas County Code Chapter 13.35.027 and 

Ecology regulations. 

 
7. Any further subdivision or lots to be served by proposed access may result in further access 

requirements. See Kittitas County Road Standards. 

 

8. Kittitas County will not accept private roads for maintenance as public streets or roads until such 

streets or roads are brought into conformance with current County Road Standards and formally 

adopted by the Kittitas County Board of County Commissioners. 

 

9. Maintenance of the access is the responsibility of the property owners who benefit from its use. 

 
10. A public utility easement 10 feet in width is reserved along all lot lines. The 10-foot easement 

shall abut the exterior plat boundary and shall be divided by 5 feet on each side of interior lot 

lines. Said easement may also be used for irrigation.  

 
11. All structures on these lots shall be sprinkled unless otherwise waived by the Kittitas County Fire 

Marshal. 

 
12. The subject property is within or near land used for agriculture on which a variety of commercial 

activities may occur that are not compatible with residential development for periods of varying 

duration. (RCW 36.70A.060(1)) Commercial natural resource activities performed in accordance 

with county, state and federal laws are not subject to legal action as public nuisances." (RCW 
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7.48.305) 

 

13. All activities within the floodplain must be permitted through the floodplain development permit 

process and follow regulations within KCC 14.08.220. 

 

14. All lots shall not allow flood irrigation. 
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THORP LANDING LONG PLAT
LP-23-00001

• Thorp Landing LLC submitted an application for a 10-lot plat on 2 parcels of 

land totaling 54.39 acres of land that is zoned Agriculture 5 within a Rural 

Residential Land Use designation. The property was rezoned from Agriculture 

20 and had a comprehensive plan change from Rural Working as part of the 

2022 Kittitas County Annual Docket changes under Ordinance 2022-017.

Project Description & Background Information
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THORP LANDING PLAT SITE 

Access is off N Thorp Hwy and Thorp Landing Lane (A Private Road)

Site 

Location

±
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THORP LANDING AERIAL VIEW (2021)
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THORP 
LANDING 
ZONING
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THORP 
LANDING 
LAND USE
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THORP LANDING APPLICATION TIMELINE

• Application submitted January 10, 2023.

• Application determined complete on 

February 7, 2023.

• Site posted on February 9, 2023.

• Notice of Application (NOA) was issued on 

February 21, 2023. The notice was sent to 

to State and Local Agencies and neighbors 

within 500 feet of the proposal’s contiguous 

tax parcels and published in the County 

newspaper of record in accordance with 

KCC 15A.
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THORP LANDING APPLICATION TIMELINE (CONT.)

• The comment period ended on March 9, 

2023

• Comments were received from various 

agencies

• A few public comments were received

• Comments were transmitted to the 

Applicant on March 13, 2023 with all 

comments being transmitted to the 

applicant on March 15, 2023.
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THORP LANDING APPLICATION TIMELINE (CONT.)

• The applicant after multiple requests 

for extensions provided response 

comments on May 1, 2023

• CDS Staff requested a transportation 

concurrency for the plat on May 5, 

2023

• The applicant provided the concurrency 

on May 15, 2023

• A concurrency determination was made 

with no mitigation measures required on 

May 30, 2023
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

• A SEPA checklist was submitted with the application and processed concurrently under the 

optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355.

• CDS performed a Critical Areas Review of the parcel and identified a Type F, likely irrigation 

ditch as well as floodplain on a portion of the properties.

• The applicant submitted a Critical Areas Report with the application that also identified Type F 

stream under the County’s critical areas code. There were no jurisdictional wetlands found on 

the property.

• The applicant also submitted a cultural resource report that looks at cultural resources at the 

road location and nearby and did not find any cultural resources on the property.

• After considering comments from various agencies and the public, CDS issued a Determination 

of Non-Significance (DNS) on June 1, 2023 as there was significant area outside critical areas 

to allow for development. 

Environmental Review
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Snoqualmie Tribe

• Snoqualmie Tribe provided comments saying they did not have any substantive comments at this time 

with their understanding of the project.

Colville Tribe

• Colville Tribe commented their concerns about ground disturbing activities and recommended an 

inadvertent discovery plan (IDP) prior to implementation. 

❖Staff has proposed a condition to this proposal to have an inadvertent discovery plan in place prior to 

any ground disturbing activity as described in the applicant’s cultural resources report.

Agency Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Washington State Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water (DOH-ODW)

• DOH-ODW commented that the applicant needs to communicate with Ecology even if separating their 

projects into smaller pieces as all of the development would be considered a single project and drinking 

water use needs to be evaluated as a collective

• They commented that expanding a Group B water system and creating a new Group B water system 

would fall under Kittitas County Public Health’s jurisdiction for approval

• They also commented that if the proposed 10 lots were to be served by a collective water system (being 

one system), then it would need to be a Group A well and submitted and approved by their department

❖Staff has proposed a condition to this proposal to have two lots served by an expanded Group B 

system, the other 8 lots served by a new Group B system or have all 10 lots on a Group A system.

Agency Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Kittitas County Fire Marshal’s Office

• The Fire Marshal’s office commented that all accesses and roads need to be compliant with the 2018 

IFC including Appendix D and Public Works requirements. They mentioned that fire flow requirements 

are per the 2018 IFC including Appendix B. The Fire Marshal’s office followed up with an e-mail on 

April 26, 2023 saying that fire flow requirements and fire hydrant system requirements are waived. 

They said the lots are in a low hazard area for wildland fires and that the lots are to be sprinkled from 

the irrigation canals.

❖Staff has recommended conditions to have all roads meet fire access requirements and that all 

structures shall be sprinkled unless waived by the Kittitas County Fire Marshal. 

Agency Comments

Index #57



THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

West Side Irrigating Company (WSIC)

• WSIC commented that their service area includes the entirety of the proposed plat. They are concerned 

about appropriate arrangements for delivery of WSIC water to reconfigured parcels within the project. 

They mention the project lands are served by two turnouts at the Main Canal. They talk about Kittitas 

County Code Chapter 16.18 which includes provisions for the orderly system of providing irrigation 

water to newly created parcel. They also commented on their currenty bylaws.

❖Staff has recommended conditions to provide a water delivery system and required easements (as 

seen in KCC 16.18) that is approved by WSIC prior to final plat approval

Agency Comments

Index #57



THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Department of Ecology

• Ecology commented on the withdrawal of groundwater and saying there is one exception to having to 

obtain authorization from Ecology and that is ground water withdrawals of up to 5,000 gallons per day.

Kittitas County Public Health

• Public Health commented that on-site septic systems must adhere to the Washington Administrative Code 

and Kittitas County Code and that each lot must do a minimum of one soil log. Public Health stated that 

soil logs were done on each proposed lot. They then commented that the existing Group B well must be 

applied for and approved to expand to serve 2 lots in this plat and that the new Group B water system 

must be approved prior to final plat approval.

❖Staff has recommended conditions to make sure that authorization is obtained from Ecology if 

withdrawing over 5,000 gallons of water a day and that the Water System be approved prior to 

final approval.

Agency Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Washington State Parks & Recreation

• Parks and Recreation voiced their concerns over trespassing, dumping, safety during construction, noise, 

light and glare issues as well as stormwater discharge

❖Staff has recommended a condition to put up no trespassing signs at the property borders and to get a 

legal easement if they want access to parks property as well as keeping stormwater on site. The county 

currently does not have requirements for light and glare although the applicant stated that this would be 

addressed through private conditions, covenants and restrictions (CCR’s)

Agency Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Kittitas County Public Works (KCPW)

• KCPW provided comments on access requirements, roads meeting fire codes, and that no access should 

be done from Goodwin Road. They also commented about projected traffic trips and the possibility of 

needing a traffic impact analysis. They had comments about required plat notes, flood development and 

water mitigation.

❖Staff has recommended conditions to have the plat meet all Kittitas County Road Standards and Fire 

apparatus access as well as plat notes suggested and water mitigation requirements. The applicant 

provided a transportation concurrency analysis which resulted in no mitigation measures determined 

needed by Public Works.

Agency Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Fudacz Family

• The Fudacz family commented on perennial springs on the property, concerns about irrigation drainage 

and water rights. They also said that the critical areas report was not sufficient as it did not consider the 

springs.

❖Staff has recommended a condition to ensure that a water delivery system approved by the irrigation 

entity is in place prior to final plat approval including all required easements. The critical areas report 

submitted was in conformance with Kittitas County’s Critical Areas Ordinance (KCC 17A). The applicant 

provided a thorough review of water rights on the property in their response comments.

Public Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Johnny & Erinn Boitano

• The Boitano’s voice their concerns about floodplain on the properties, aquifer depletion and flood 

irrigation bringing the water table up.

❖Staff has recommended a condition to not allow flood irrigation and there is sufficient room outside of 

the floodplain and critical areas setbacks to build on the proposed lots. Public Health reviews wells and 

septic systems for conformance with code and approval (which reviews potential groundwater issues in 

that process).

Public Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Paula Thompson

• Paula Thompson commented that the SEPA checklist should have included perennial springs and wetlands 

and talked about water rights. She also had comments about fire hydrants, that turn lane should be 

required on Thorp Hwy and further concerns about irrigation runoff.

❖Staff has recommended conditions requiring a water delivery system approved by the irrigation district 

prior to final plat approval. This will include required easements/right-of-way for adjudicated water 

and for the irrigation district to deliver water. Structures on these properties will be required to be 

sprinkled unless waived by the Kittitas County Fire Marshal. 

❖The Critical Areas Report met County Code and the applicant provided a transportation concurrency 

application which resulted in no mitigation measures required to add a turn land on Thorp Hwy.

Public Comments
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

• Staff has reviewed all the application materials and comments received. The 

proposal was reviewed for its consistency with Kittitas County Code (KCC) and 

the Comprehensive Plan. The specifics of the review can be found in the Staff 

Report provided in your review materials.
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Staff finds the project to be consistent, as conditioned, with:

• Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan

• KCC Title 12 Roads and Bridges

• KCC Title 15 Environmental Policy

• KCC Title 16 Subdivisions

• KCC Title 17 Zoning

• KCC Title 17A Critical Areas

• KCC Title 20 Fire & Life Safety

Consistency
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THORP LANDING PLAT
LP-23-00001

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Thorp Landing Long Plat subject 

to the conditions identified in the Staff Report.

Recommendation
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